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Financial Results

I ' would like to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2009. During the year, the Group recorded a loss from operations
of HK$209.0 million, compared with a profit from operations of HK$471.9
million for the previous financial year. The loss was mainly attributable to the
net valuation losses on investment properties of HK$183.1 million, compared
with the net valuation gains on investment properties of HK$470.8 million in
the previous financial year. Such valuation losses will only affect the
accounting profit or loss but not the cash flow of the Group. Excluding the
net valuation losses on investment properties, the Group recorded a loss
from operations for the financial year ended 31 March 2009 of approximately
HK$25.9 million as compared with the profit from operations of
approximately HK$1.1 million in the previous financial year. Such change was
mainly due to a steep reduction in interest income plus advertising and

marketing expenses incurred for ISQUARE during the year.

Business Review and Commentary on
Financial Results

Rental income generated from investment properties was slightly improved
and recorded HK$9.2 million for the year under review, representing an
increase of approximately 5.3% over the previous financial year. The
improvement was mainly attributable to the higher rental charged on

renewed tenancy agreements during the year.

Austin Hills Golf Resort, the Group’s golf and recreational club operation,
suffered a segment loss of HK$6.0 million for the financial year ended
31 March 2009. Segment revenue for the said year was HK$17.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$2.1 million compared with the

previous financial year.

Interest income amounted to HK$10.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$12.8 million compared with the previous financial year.
The steep reduction in interest income was mainly due to a decrease in

interest rates.

Annual Report 08-09 &£ 03
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Capital Structure and Liquidity

The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2009 was HK$5,307.3 million,
compared with HK$5,521.3 million at 31 March 2008. As announced on
20 October 2006, Associated International Hotels Limited (“AIHL”), which is
the Company’s 50.01% owned subsidiary, has entered into a facility
agreement with a bank comprising of a 5-year term loan facility of up to
HKS$1 bilion and a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200 million.
AIHL has an option to extend the facilities for two additional years, subject
to, among other things, the agreement of the lending bank. At 31 March
2009, the banking facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$568 million and
the Group’s gearing ratio was 10.7% (calculated as total bank loan over total

equity).

Outlook

The development of ISQUARE on the site located at No. 63 Nathan Road,
Kowloon (Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425) owned by AIHL has entered its final
stage. The superstructure was topped out in February 2009. Internal and
external finishing works are now in progress. The occupation permit is
anticipated to be obtained in the third quarter of this year. Barring unforeseen
circumstances, the entire project is expected to be completed before
December 2009, targeting to open for business by the end of 2009. The
present estimated cost of construction for this project is around HK$1.3

billion and this will be mainly financed by external borrowings.

The global financial turmoil has had a profound impact on the economy and
such impact has affected the leasing market in Hong Kong. The
management expects the operating environment to be challenging. However,
given its location and quality of construction, the Directors believe that, over

time, ISQUARE should become a popular shopping centre.
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Contingent Liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in note 28 to the

financial statements.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the Company will be held on

Wednesday, 9 September 2009.

Dividend

The Board has resolved that in view of the cessation of the main business of
the Group which was the operation of a hotel and the hotel’s shopping
arcade, no final dividend will be paid to shareholders (2008: HK$NIil). As no
interim dividend was paid during the year, there will be no dividend paid for
the entire year (2008: 2 cents per share). The register of members of the
Company will be closed for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting from Thursday, 3 September 2009 to Wednesday,
9 September 2009, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be effected. All transfers must be lodged with the Company’s

share registrars not later than 4:30 pm on Wednesday, 2 September 2009.

Staff

At 31 March 2009, the total number of employees of the Group was 119.

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside

training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion

and dedication in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 July 2009

Annual Report 08-09 &£ 05
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iISQUARE

This commercial complex will house a number of retail, entertainment, food
and beverage establishments. It is well located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui

and easily accessible.

The superstructure was topped out in February 2009. Internal and external
finishing works are now in progress. Barring unforeseen circumstances, the
entire project is expected to be completed before December 2009, targeting

to open for business by the end of 2009.

Goodluck Industrial Centre

Four floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre belong to the Company. There are
automobile showrooms, vehicle workshops, carparking spaces and a

gasoline station. The Centre is located in Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon.

Austin Hills Golf Resort

This golf resort is in the city of Johor Bahru, Malaysia. There are three 9-hole
golf courses. Other entertainment facilities include tennis courts, a driving
range, a games room, pool tables, 8-lane bowling alleys, a lounge/karaoke
and a swimming pool. There are also 66 suites and food and beverage

establishments.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholders and is therefore
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. To
accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure,

and identified and formalised appropriate measures.

Subsequent to 1 January 2009, the Company has carried out a review on
the compliance with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”). Except for the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
that were not separated and performed by two individuals, being inconsistent
with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company, throughout the
year ended 31 March 2009, complied with all the code provisions in the CG

Code which were then in force.

In respect of the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. The Board of Directors considers that the current structure
does not have any adverse effect on the Company and believes that this
structure enables the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and

efficiently.
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
code for dealing in securities in the Company by its directors (“Model Code”).
Specific enquiry has been made with all directors of the Company of any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

year ended 31 March 2009.

Annual Report 08-09 &£ 07
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors during the year ended 31 March 2009 comprised the

following directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors
Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Mr Lau Wah Sum

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Tse Pang Yuen

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the directors who are

members of the Cheong family own business outside the Group together.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group. It
formulates objectives, overall strategies and business plans and oversees
the financial and management performance of the Group. For efficient
operation, certain functions and authorities are delegated to the
management, which include implementation of objectives, strategies and
plans adopted by the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s

business.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2009 on a going concern basis, the directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently with those applied
to the financial statements of the previous financial year. The directors have

also made judgements and estimates which are reasonable.

The directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group. The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out

in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 34 to 35.
Six board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, were held

during the year ended 31 March 2009. Individual attendance of the directors

is set out below:

HESBRRE FERHEERERE

= Directors Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HITEE Executive Directors

BISR S E () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 6/6
BB E (BIE/E) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 6/6
558 /7 BB ST A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 4/6
AR ST Mr Cheong Sim Lam 6/6
BRI /MR Miss Cheong Chong Ling 6/6
FMITEE Non-executive Directors

ACAERR S Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 6/6
BIFERTAE Mr Lau Wah Sum 6/6
BIEHITEE Independent Non-executive Directors

EEFSLE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 6/6
sz Bk E Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 5/6
MG T % Mr Tse Pang Yuen 6/6

Annual Report 08-09 &£ 09
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Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors

The non-executive directors are appointed for a term of one year whilst
independent non-executive directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each independent non-
executive director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
independent non-executive directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration of Directors

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain directors
and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at competitive level. In
order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration committee.
Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no director or his associates is

allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.



EEHFM @

FNEEeH =B UIERTESNMEIEHR
TEZHEK  -KERERAZERLE(ZESE
) BIFERSLE - AHEBEE  BETEE
MkFEBERE - FNEZESNIEHEZNY
RARGIGIEEREEEEABNFHIEE K
R REFMARTEENSEERABNT
B mMEEERBENTESFE IIERTE
EMHM B R ERRBAMECOTI
BRI AERARTEENREERABLIM
BEMERRRIEABENEETEHANERE
MR ERESTAREMBEXERE
MEZEMSPLNBERZSE FTHEESWBE
HEDFAMBEELNFRE -BHEEHEE
ENAQBEY  XAUETmSAAAATWE
RE o

HITEENREEEABNFHNEFHFMNE
BEeAEZRETRARNERRET (HEEE
ST A ) Hr N AN B R RS R S B BT AR B O 52
L AFMEZES2RRE) FHZES
BETERNIFPTEETNBEILFRTEREN
FH YHZEEEMEETSHELZER - £t
BTHWHEMINEFHRTEETEERSEH
MATENERRKET -

Remuneration of Directors (continued)

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors and two non-executive directors. The members are Mr Chow Wan
Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Lau Wah Sum, Mr Sin Cho Chiu,
Charles, Mr Tse Pang Yuen and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam. The main duties of
the remuneration committee are to assist the Company in formulating
remuneration policy and structure for directors and senior management; to
determine the remuneration packages for all executive directors and senior
management; to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors; to
review and approve performance-based remuneration; to review and
approve compensation payable to executive directors and senior
management in connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment; and to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct. Details of the
remuneration committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of
reference. The said terms of reference are published on the Company’s
website and are also available upon written request to the company

secretary.

Remuneration for executive directors and senior management is determined
by the remuneration committee on the recommendations of the chief
executive officer (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong whose remuneration
package is determined by the remuneration committee without
recommendation of or reference to the chief executive officer) on an annual
basis. The remuneration committee also makes recommendations to the
Board on the review of remuneration for non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors annually. For all other staff, it is the
executive directors who fix their remuneration packages on the

recommendations of their respective department heads on an annual basis.

Annual Report 08-09 &£ 11
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Remuneration of Directors (continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the directors. When determining the remuneration
packages for senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and executive directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market condition, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 26 to the financial
statements on page 111, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the remuneration committee held
two meetings, at which, the committee reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and
structure; considered and fixed the remuneration packages for executive
directors and senior management; and made recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration for both the non-executive directors and independent

non-executive directors.

EFHEZEeRKELEeR a8 T ! The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out
below:

HESBXE BEREESI AR

124 Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
EENE(ZTESFE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 2/2

%\J ERES Mr Lau Wah Sum 2/2
AR R R Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
B EE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
HUS T A Mr Tse Pang Yuen 2/2
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Nomination of Directors

The Company does not have a nomination committee as the role and

function of such committee are currently performed by the Board.

As regards nomination of directors, the Board is responsible for the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of directors. For appointment of a
new director, the Board considers not only the skills and experience of the
candidate, but also his/her value to the Company, so as to ensure that there
is a balanced composition of the Board. The process for re-election of a
director is pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, which requires
that (i) every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election; and
(iiy directors who are appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
shall retire at the next annual general meeting whilst those appointed to fill
casual vacancies shall retire at the next general meeting (instead of the next
annual general meeting) and directors so appointed are eligible for re-

election.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2009, the Board made
recommendations and provided biographical details to shareholders of the
Company on directors standing for re-election. The Chairman from time to
time reviewed the composition of the Board with particular regard to the
number of independent non-executive directors. The Board also reviewed

and determined the suitability and terms for re-appointment of directors.

Annual Report 08-09 &% 13
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EERBZ @ Nomination of Directors continued)

ERE_ZTENFE=A=1t—"HIFERXNME Among the six board meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2009,

A ASREETEeaY MAGEEEFNZME two of the meetings covered issues in relation to re-appointment of directors.
EEEWH REFHREZMAEETE TR ZNX Individual attendance of the directors at the said two board meetings is set
g out below:

HESRRE FERHETRRE

S Directors Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HITEF Executive Directors
EIBBE (FE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
EEMELE (BIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
5 40 N ST A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 2/2
BREEE Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
BRI /A Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FHFHITEE Non-executive Directors
MAERB L E Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
RERLE Mr Lau Wah Sum 2/2
BUIHITEF Independent Non-executive Directors
BAE&SLE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
hEBELE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
Bl it Mr Tse Pang Yuen 2/2
2 E RN & Auditors’ Remuneration

REBEE-—ZTZAF=ZA=1+—HLEFE  &AQ During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Auditors of the Company, KPMG,
AIZEE — EEReAMESRAEER provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$901,000 to the
HEE LB 01,000 T M iZ B REMEEL Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of approximately
B #5499,0007 Z FEXBURTS - FERBURBEM HK$499,000 to the Group, which included HK$134,000 and HK$259,000
BIE D B A 7 134,000 7T F 78 # 259,000 7T HY being charges for tax services and interim review respectively.

BRI P ERE B AR

14  Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#:EHR DR
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Audit Committee

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are to
make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors; to approve remuneration and terms of
engagement, and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of external auditors; to review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process; to
discuss with the external auditors on the nature and scope of audit and
reporting obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and
implement policy on engagement of external auditors to supply non-audit
services; to oversee financial reporting system and internal control procedure
and to review financial information of the Group. Details of the audit
committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The
said terms of reference are published on the Company’s website and are

also available upon written request to the company secretary.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two non-executive directors. The members are Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
(committee chairman), Mr Lau Wah Sum, Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles,

Mr Tse Pang Yuen and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the audit committee met four times,
at which the audit committee made recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of the external auditors, considered and approved the
remuneration of the external auditors; reviewed the half-year and annual
financial statements of the Group, including integrity and significant financial
reporting judgements contained therein, before submission to the Board for
approval; discussed with the external auditors the nature and scope of the
audit and scope and extent of interim review before commencement of
annual audit and interim review in respect of the Group respectively; ensured
that the Company had complied with its policy on engagement of external
auditors to supply non-audit services to the Group; reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and met the external

auditors without the presence of executive board members of the Company.
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EREED (@) Audit Committee (continued)
EEZLTEeKRELF SR 2EHENOT The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:
HESBXE BEREESBI AR
RE Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
EREE(ZESEE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 4/4

%‘J BEREE Mr Lau Wah Sum 4/4

PR ST A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 4/4

B EE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/4

HUS T A Mr Tse Pang Yuen 4/4
A 3 B Internal Control
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The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system and
reviewing its effectiveness. Procedure and systems are in place to safeguard
assets against unauthorised use or disposition; to maintain proper
accounting records and to ensure accuracy of financial information and
compliance with applicable statutes, rules and regulations. Defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines have been established. However, these
procedure and systems are designed to minimise and mitigate the risk of
failure in operation and achievement of the Company’s objectives and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against errors, losses or

fraud.

The Board has, with the assistance of the audit committee of the Company,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009. The review covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions. Based on the result of the review, the Board
considers that the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget are adequate. The Board is not aware of any
significant areas of concern which has to be brought to the attention of the

shareholders.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the audited

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Principal Place of Business

Tian Teck Land Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at Room 502, Euro Trade Centre, 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central,

Hong Kong.
Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries during the financial year is

set out in note 3 to the financial statements.
Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the five largest suppliers and five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases

and sales respectively.
Financial Statements
The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the state of the

Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 36 to 114.
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BAGEE Transfer to Reserves

MANMBBEENBREEBEBEABK Loss attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$173,818,000
173818000 L ( ZEENF : & Fl BB K (2008: profits of HK$420,910,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other
420,910,0007T ) B 8 A 5 - 7 18 6y E i & movements in reserves are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.
FEIEF B I R E24 -

ERAEBBKIEETERER — B/EMEE The Board has resolved that in view of the cessation of the main business of
EHENEE  EFECERAETRERAKRE T the Group which was the operation of a hotel and the hotel’s shopping
E(ZZEENF &) HRARTRNEAFE arcade, no final dividend will be paid to shareholders (2008: HK$NIl). As no
RAERBEPHKRE B2 FHEREAMER interim dividend was paid during the year, there will be no dividend paid for

B(ZZEZNF : BB 21L) - the entire year (2008: HK$0.02 per share).
BEBM Charitable Donations

E B R ANEE AW & 18 50 5 75 82,005,000 7T Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$2,005,000

(ZZZNF : BE50007T) ° (2008: HK$5,000).
— S .
EEE Fixed Assets
EEEMNEBFBINENRTBHREWE12 - Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.
REBEMREMEDT The investment properties of the Group are as follows:
BEEDYE Property under redevelopment
A&t
1t B TERE HEFH EREE & B 17 1 R BHER SEER
Intended Term of Stage of Expected year Gross Group’s
Location use lease completion  of completion Site area floor area interest
NERZESTZH [GES HHf FETR 2009 4,044 53,048 50.01%
(A HLER 7425%% ) TP FHK FHA
63 Nathan Road, Commercial Medium  Superstructure 2009 4,044 sqm 53,048 sqgm 50.01%
Kowloon (Kowloon construction
Inland Lot No. 7425) in progress

18  Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#:EHR DA



TEEE (&) Fixed Assets (Continued)

HERGFERZEEY X Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation
ith B HEMZ HEEH
Location Existing use Term of lease
FETEKRE THREEM b HA

HTRABR - —EABM K
#HTLT L2~ L3R AR EfT
NEBBELDREFE —EZHRK

(BLYE A3 R 2255% )
Good Luck Industrial Building Workshops and Medium
Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor, car parking spaces

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,

105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

PTD 58065 to 58149 and PTD 58151, KEETE KA
Mukim of Tebrau, Johor Bahru, Johor, Undetermined Freehold
Malaysia

4 58 T E A D UL~ BRAIE - # A
W —i s ZERE FEMNER

EEPEZHABENAEZE/\R
(37 MU BE R b ER 578055 )

Goodluck Industrial Centre Petrol filling station, Medium
Ground, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Floors, showrooms, car parking

808 Lai Chi Kok Road, spaces and car

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon workshops

(New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 5780)

HZES F /N 7
NE—FE+MER

BN T =

BERABR=T=%

Yi An Plaza Office Medium
Unit 1 to 14, 8th Floor,

No. 33 Jianshe 6 Road,

Yuexiu District,

Guangzhou, PRC
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors

Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam
Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors

Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Lau Wah Sum

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Tse Pang Yuen

In accordance with articles 103, 104 and 109 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Lau Wah Sum and Chow Wan Hoi,
Paul shall retire from the board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general

meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed to
their respective executive offices in the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, for an initial period of two years effective on
1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after the said period unless

and until either party gives to the other three months’ notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2009, the directors and chief executives of the Company
and their associates had the following interests in the shares of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”):

(=)
IR
@@ ZA2AF (a) The Company
SREEBE0.25 TR 1T KRE
Number of shares of HK$0.25 each
EERA
BERfEn B% 17 48 &1
B AR RERER NGIE £ e HWEZ L
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
®"E Name interests interests interests interests shares
FEp Y] Cheong Hooi Hong 4,625,792 - - 4,625,792 0.97%
g 1B AR Cheong Kheng Lim 46,023,872 115,292 — 46,139,164 9.72%
EE b Cheong Keng Hooi 26,912,036 1,002,384 — 27,914,420 5.88%
i pogeal Cheong Sim Lam 1,099,504 — — 1,099,504 0.23%
RIS Cheong Chong Ling 412,000 - - 412,000 0.09%
oLt Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2,000 - 115,200 117,200 0.02%
(7% ) (Note)
B QEEETH15200 AR EERAGFAFEY Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares held by
115,200 % f& 15 © 1R i% m%“ﬂm B+ AR E AR Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be interested in
BEALEROMER such shares under the SFO.
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EENESTHAEEENR Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
7 - HERDNEEENER Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

N4 AL L
ERAE (@) and Debentures (continued)
(b) SNEEENFREJE AR DA (b) Associated International Hotels Limited
EREEBEITEERRE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
HE T
BERfEn % 17 48 2
PN REER A A By WE DL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
EIRIE Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 - - 2,073,992 0.58%
g B AR Cheong Kheng Lim 26,089,715 34,000 — 26,123,715 7.26%
55 1 8 Cheong Keng Hooi 15,275,839 275,280 - 15,551,119 4.32%
i pogeal Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 — 1,831,155 0.51%
BRI Cheong Chong Ling 588,000 - - 588,000 0.16%
oLt Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 — 120,000 362,000 0.10%
(5% ) (Note)

o O RTIERTHI120000R ABEERATMFEN Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary shares
120,000 % & i@ % o RIEEFH G0 - SLIERB fe held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be
RARBLZERGOOER - interested in such shares under the SFO.

(c) Awustin Hills Country Resort Bhd. (c) Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.

EREEERAETITEERRE

Number of ordinary shares of MYR1 each
=X 0
BRfER % 17 48 2
B AER REER AR R By WE DL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
$EIB MK Cheong Kheng Lim 1 — — 1 0.00001%
i pogeal Cheong Sim Lam - 3 — 3 0.00003%
EIRIL Cheong Chong Ling 1 - - 1 0.00001%
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures continued)

(d) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

#®E Name

B s e Cheong Hooi Hong
2 I8 AR Cheong Kheng Lim
43 M 2 Cheong Keng Hooi
e podes] Cheong Sim Lam

BREEBKITEERRE

Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
HE#&1T
EnEs IR 13 48 B
(PN XEER AR S By WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
25 — — 25 25%
25 — — 25 25%
25 — — 25 25%
25 — — 25 25%

(e) Yik Fok Investment Holding Company, Limited

%" E Name

2y Cheong Hooi Hong
BN Cheong Kheng Lim
48 1 1% Cheong Keng Hooi
FELTE Cheong Sim Lam

BEREEEHITEERRE

Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
LB #1T
EnEs IR 17 48 &
&l AR 22 XEER AR R B WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
10 — — 10 0.00005%
10 — — 10 0.00005%
10 — — 10 0.00005%
10 — — 10 0.00005%

BREMRFIEEIN  BARBIZBEFEHE
BRGHRERBFNELMET  JIRRBEST
A LA E A 75 18 AN 22 R) Be Bt 32 P 4 A FR 3R
RZZZAF=ZA=+—H XRAEELE
SITBRABREBEAN(RBIMES LR
AN(TEMRAN]) 2ER)LEHRBARA N
HABOEE (AR A B F RO EXVELFFEHE
)WBD - MERDAERENRDIOXE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of the directors and
chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”))
had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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FTERRREMALTERNR
MEEROGHVEZR AR

MmN ARBEBA - WARBEIRRS

BRLlfiEsARREERESITHRAR

TEENFE=A=+—REAELARTRDE
mEMT :

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2009, other than the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

BREE

B¥028TT HEBITRA

ROKRE #HAENEIL

Number of Percentage of

shares of total issued

HK$0.25 each shares

KEHRE AT Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 237,370,032 50.001%

EIB MK Cheong Kheng Lim 46,139,164 9.72%
(5%1) (Note 1)

42 I 12 Cheong Keng Hooi 27,914,420 5.88%
(32) (Note 2)

WA i Lim Yoke Soon 46,139,164 9.72%
(5£3) (Note 3)

RE= Wu Soo Huei 27,914,420 5.88%
(#4) (Note 4)

i Notes:

) $E 38 M A B 246,139,164 IR % 15 Y
46,023 8721k mEEME LB AT H - 115292k
AlARRBMREBELZLTRFA -

© EMBE L AEEAR 227914420 BB & D &
26,912,036 % 7% 48 M 48 55 A B A 5B - 1,002,384 %
AAHBEBIREEZLES -

) WA 2z L A 246,139,164 1% A% {5 1 #9115,202 %
ANEBLZTEARZE - 460238721 Al A H B
EEMELERE -

) MEELZTHEHAR 2271914420 B & 7 - &
1,002,384 AR BB LZ TEAFEE - 26912,036/%
AlAHRBEMBEERE -

BEMFAmEEIN  R_EEAF=A=+—
B - 7R F G AN R A R IR
1R DI F 336 15N B HEF R E M H AR E K
D AR D WS TORE -
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(1) Out of the 46,139,164 shares in which Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is interested,
46,023,872 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim himself, and 115,292
shares were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

) Out of the 27,914,420 shares in which Mr Cheong Keng Hooi is interested,
26,912,036 shares were held by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi himself, and 1,002,384
shares were held by his spouse, Ms Wu Soo Huei.

) Qut of the 46,139,164 shares in which Ms Lim Yoke Soon is interested, 115,292
shares were held by Ms Lim Yoke Soon herself, and 46,023,872 shares were
held by her spouse, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim.

(4) Qut of the 27,914,420 shares in which Ms Wu Soo Huei is interested, 1,002,384
shares were held by Ms Wu Soo Huei herself, and 26,912,036 shares were held
by her spouse, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, no other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

have been notified to the Company.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, or in which a director of the Company
had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly), subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

(@) Agreements exist between the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited (“AIHL”), a 50.01% owned subsidiary, whereby AIHL
agrees to provide administrative services (company secretarial) and
non-administrative services (office facilities and staff) to the Company
for an indefinite period. The aggregate fees paid to AIHL for the year
ended 31 March 2009 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2008:
HK$1,200,000).

(b) A management agreement exists between AIHL and DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Property Management Limited (“DTZ”) whereby DTZ is
responsible for general building and property management (except for
the services relating to tenancy) of ISQUARE for an initial period of
2 years after the date of the occupation permit and the appointment
continues after the said period unless and until AIHL gives to the other
three months’ notice in writing. No manager’s remuneration was paid

by AIHL for the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

On 20 October 2006, the Company’s subsidiary, AIHL, as borrower, entered
into a facility agreement with a bank (the “Facility Agreement”) with covenants

relating to specific performance of the controlling shareholders of AIHL.

The Facility Agreement comprises a 5-year term loan facility of up to
HKS$1 bilion and a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200 million.
AIHL has an option to extend the facilities for two additional years, subject

to, among other things, the agreement of the lending bank.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default if
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam, collectively being the controlling shareholders of the
Company and AIHL, cease to beneficially own, directly or indirectly, at least
25% of the issued share capital of AIHL in accordance with the terms of the

Facility Agreement.

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, the lending bank may,
among other things, demand immediate repayment of all of the loans made

to AIHL under the Facility Agreement together with accrued interest.

The Company will make continuing disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules in subsequent interim and annual reports for so long as the

circumstances giving rise to the relevant obligation continue to exist.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other disclosure

obligations under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.
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Disclosure Relating to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

(@) There are no changes in respect of the directors' emoluments at the
level of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2009. Changes in
respect of the executive directors' emoluments for the year ended
31 March 2009 are due to allowances for expenses actually incurred
by the executive directors at the level of the Company's subsidiary,

AIHL, and the policy regarding such expenses has not changed.

(b) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of a listed company, China Ground Source Energy

Limited, with effect from 1 May 2009.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2009 are set out in notes 21 to 23 to the financial statements.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 115 and 116 of the annual report.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 26 to the financial

statements.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive

directors to be independent.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 July 2009
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 62, has been Chairman and a director of the
Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984
respectively. He is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited. He is also a director of Tian Teck
Investment Holding Co., Limited and a director of all holding companies and
subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is a member of both the CPA Australia
and the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. He holds a
diploma from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Commerce. He
has extensive experience in property development and investment both in

Hong Kong and Singapore for over 40 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 60, has been Deputy Chairman and a director
of the Company since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He has been the Deputy
Chairman and a director of Associated International Hotels Limited since
1984. He is the Chief Operation Officer of Associated International Hotels
Limited. Mr Cheong is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co.,
Limited and a director of all holding companies and subsidiaries in the Group
(except Austin Hills Land Sdn. Bhd., Austin Hills Country Resort Pte. Ltd.,
Austin Hills View Sdn. Bhd. and Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd.).

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 56, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Project Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited. He
is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and a director
of all holding companies and subsidiaries in the Group (except Austin Hills
View Sdn. Bhd. and Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd.). Mr Cheong holds a degree

of Bachelor of Business Administration from the University of Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 50, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Investment Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and a
director of all holding companies and subsidiaries in the Group. He obtained
a certificate in Accounting and General Business from Kapiolani Community

College, Hawaii and has over 29 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Keng Hooi and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 38, joined the Group as an assistant to
directors in 1997. She was appointed as a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited effective from 1 January 2007. She is
the Chief Administration Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
Miss Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of Science from the School of Hotel

Administration at Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company and is also the niece of directors, Messrs Cheong

Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, oBg, aged 73, has been a director of the
Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1984 and 1985
respectively. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited and was the company secretary of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited from 1990 to 2004. Mr Sin is a
solicitor and a notary public and holds a degree of Master of Arts from the
University of Cambridge. He was Chairman of Kam Ngan Stock Exchange
from 1985 to 1986 and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from
1987 to 1988. He was a former Chairman of the Home Ownership Scheme
Committee and the Management Committee of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority and a former member of the Urban Council and the Executive

Committee of the Housing Society.

Mr Lau Wah Sum, GBS, OBE, FCMA, FCPA, LLD, DBA, JP, aged 81, has been a
director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
1993 and 1988 respectively. He currently also serves on the audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Lau was a Legislative Councillor from 1988 to 1995,
Chairman of the Court and Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University and
Chairman of the Urban Renewal Authority. He is also a member of the Court
of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and an independent

non-executive director of another listed company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Associated International Hotels
Limited in 2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Chow has significant experience in accounting and
finance and has been an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales since 1983 and an Associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia since 1988 and is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Chow is an independent

non-executive director of another listed company.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Associated International Hotels
Limited in 2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Yau has extensive legal knowledge and experience. He
qualified as a barrister in England in 1964 and practised as an advocate and
solicitor in Singapore and Malaysia, and as an advocate in the State of
Brunei before coming to Hong Kong. Mr Yau was admitted to Hong Kong

Bar in 1985 and practised as a barrister until 2001.

Mr Tse Pang Yuen, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2004. He currently also serves on the
audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr Tse is a
veteran lawyer. He is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and
Singapore and has been a managing partner of Messrs Stephen Lo & P. Y.

Tse, Solicitors since 1987.
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Senior Management

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 58, joined the Group in 1987 and has
been financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Miss Chan
was a chief accountant of the Group’s ultimate holding company. She has

over 29 years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 52, joined the Company in 1981 and has been

the Group’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, Acis, Acs, aged 39, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Group in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Associated International Hotels Limited since 2004.

Ms Wong Siu Mei, cra, Acca, aged 40, is senior accountant of the Company.
She holds a degree of Master of Professional Accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company in 2008, Ms Wong
worked for a multinational corporation over 9 years in field of accounting and

treasury.

Note: Miss Chan, Mr Choi and Ms Ng are employed by Associated International
Hotels Limited and serve the Company pursuant to the management agreement
between the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of Tian Teck Land Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian Teck Land
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 36 to 114, which comprise the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 March 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2009
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

9 July 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-ZThAE=A=+—HLLFE (LUB¥EIITR) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2009 2008
s Frx T
Note $°000 $'000
BER Turnover 2&3 25,766 26,274
RT%5$5E K AR Cost of services/sales (16,312) (16,508)
9,454 9,766
b U A Other revenue 4 11,670 25,565
Hih (BB) WS FE Other net (loss)/income 4 (1,382) 2,551
"EYFEGE Net valuation (losses)/gains on
(B18) /B FE investment properties 12(a) (183,007) 470,783
EmYERE Reversal of impairment loss
&5 18 ¥ o] in respect of other properties 12(a) 4,008 4,014
HEEM Selling expenses (572) (721)
TRER Administrative expenses (49,065) (40,064)
e () ORF (Loss)/profit from operations 3 (208,984) 471,894
A& B Finance costs 5(a) (138) (141)
BRELAT (BE) =R (Loss)/profit before taxation 5 (209,122) 471,753
FriS %t Income tax 8(a) 35,304 (50,843)
TEE (BE)OBER (Loss)/profit for the year (173,818) 420,910
THIA LB : Attributable to:
NAEERR Equity shareholders of the Company 9 (86,392) 221,226
DB RS Minority interests (87,426) 199,684
KEE (FE) OBEF (Loss)/profit for the year (173,818) 420,910
TEERNGATER Dividends payable to equity shareholders
BRERE : of the Company attributable to the year:  10(a)
FAEERFEHRKRE Interim dividend declared during the year - 9,495
HEHEBEEZDIK Final dividend proposed after the
REARR B balance sheet date — —
- 9,495
ER(EE), BF (Loss)/earnings per share
—EXR#EE — basic and diluted 11 $(0.18) $0.47

FABEEFB14EMEBE A SRR —ID o The notes on pages 43 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheets

“ETAF=ZA=1+—8 (LEETIR) At 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RE ¥ NN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
b= T Tt T T
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
FEEE Fixed assets 12
—REYHE — Investment properties 6,104,910 5,722,127 137,500 142,400
— EfbEE - — Other properties, plant and
BB M i equipment 237,922 271,801 - —
6,342,832 5,993,928 137,500 142,400
PRI A RIHHEZS Interest in subsidiaries 13 - - 235,053 232,367
Al HHERE R FE S Available-for-sale equity securities 14 1,369 3,621 - —
EERRIBEE Deferred tax assets 8(d) 1,286 1,565 - —
6,345,487 5,999,114 372,553 374,767
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 203 235 — -
FEUWBESL - 54 Accounts receivable, deposits
ISSEENE - and prepayments 15 10,264 4,571 523 525
EULFT 15 Tax recoverable 8(c) 58 — 58 —
BiKIHIRITFE X Pledged bank deposits 16 2,226 — - —
He MIEE&ZEEY Cashand cash equivalents 17 450,421 477,493 5,106 2,872
463,172 482,299 5,687 3,397
mEEE Current liabilities
FERTBRZR « E b Accounts payable, other
N KL EETER  payables and accruals 18 207,467 68,633 1,189 1,350
BUWET & Deposits received 19 7,966 7,495 2,146 2,108
RHIRA S %M Provision for long service
payments 20 1,774 1,282 - -
A SRR Obligations under finance leases 22 73 140 — _
REAFT 15 F: Current taxation 8(0) 86 259 - 202
217,366 77,809 3,335 3,660
REEE Net current assets/
(BE)FE (liabilities) 245,806 404,490 2,352 (263)
EEHAEBER Total assets less current
REEE liabilities 6,591,293 6,403,604 374,905 374,504
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EEBEX
Balance Sheets

“EFAE=ZA=1+—8 (LLB%%I’R) At31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RE ¥ NN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
B 7 T Tt T Tt
Note $°000 $'000 $'000 $°000
IRBERE Non-current liabilities
RITE — B Bank loan — secured 21 568,000 130,000 — —
FERT B (& Government lease premiums
payable 23 2,327 2,367 - —
mhE R E AR Obligations under finance leases 22 — 70 - —
BAERIES & Deferred tax liabilities 8(d) 713,624 749,873 18,460 19,218
BB atE Other financial liabilities 2 2 _ _
1,283,953 882,312 18,460 19,218
BEETHE NET ASSETS 5,307,340 5,521,292 356,445 355,286
BEAXRE#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24
A% Share capital 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683
== Reserves 2,608,746 2,716,323 237,762 236,603
2,727,429 2,835,006 356,445 355,286
DEBRRER Minority interests 2,579,911 2,686,286 - —
R TOTAL EQUITY 5,307,340 5,521,292 356,445 355,286

EEeR _ZETNFLANARELFFAEL -

EBEF
EEE

EF
EEM

FREEZFA4EMNEBAYEHREN—ID -
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Cheong Hooi Hong

Cheong Kheng Lim

Director

The notes on pages 43 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_ZZThAF=ZA=1+—BLLFE (LUIB¥FR) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2009 2008
B 5 Fr T
Note $’000 $'000
72008,72007 %4818 Total equity at 1 April 2008/2007
MRERARE 24(a) 5,521,292 5,083,983
BEEEZRAN Net (loss)/income recognised directly
(F18) W BHE in equity:
AHPEEZESFNAA Changes in fair value of available-for-sale
BEZH equity securities 24(a) (2,252) 4,303
TREREIRTEER Changes in deferred tax resulting from
IR AET 18 & &) decrease in tax rate 24(a) - 17,613
HBE G N B A ) Exchange differences on translation of
ISR TESE financial statements of overseas
HE X ERE subsidiaries 24(a) (37,904) 20,333
AREEEEEERER Net (loss)/income for the year recognised
(B8 W directly in equity (40,156) 42,249
BEkRE: Transfer from equity:
BEEAHIEEERES Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of
i # A B = available-for-sale equity securities 24(a) 22 (2,191)
REE (BE) CBFBE Net (loss)/profit for the year 24(a) (173,818) 420,910
KEEEEIAN Total recognised net (loss)/income
F(ER) WEEE for the year (213,952) 460,968
THI AT FEAE - Attributable to:
— RAEERE — Equity shareholders of the Company (107,577) 242,315
— LEREER — Minority interests (106,375) 218,653
(213,952) 460,968
AEECERN Dividends declared or approved
HAENKRES during the year 24(a) — (23,737)
EXRSEEN Movement in equity arising from
e capital transactions:
M B A BB ITE LR Premium in respect of preference shares
TFEEBRBREMEE issued to preference shareholders
B 5 (B of a subsidiary 24(a) - 78
MIASTHMWERESE Total equity at 31 March 24(a) 5,307,340 5,521,292

FABEEF 4B M

BAPBERERN—EHD

The notes on pages 43 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-_ZZNE=ZA=1+—HBILLEE (LLB¥%|/R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40

2009 2008
Bt 5 F F Tt Tt
Note $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
REFH Operating activities
BREEAT (EIB) 5 F (Loss)/profit before taxation (209,122 471,753
FEIFE : Adjustments for:
— MBKA — Interest income (10,597) (23,414)
— BERAK — Finance costs 138 141
—E — Depreciation 7,939 8,258
—REYEMLE — Net valuation losses/(gains)
EiE (&) on investment properties
HER 183,097 (470,783)
— EYERE — Reversal of impairment loss in
E5 18 o] respect of other properties (4,008) (4,014)
—HEERHHEE  — Transfer from equity on
A disposal of available-for-sale
BEER equity securities 22 2,191)
—REBEETEE — Net loss/(profit) on disposal
&g (&) of fixed assets
FEE 8 (249)
— FWESEMARE — Dividend income from
A listed securities (33) (41)
— HNEESE 1R — Foreign exchange losses 1,389 92
177,955 (492,201)
EEESEEA Operating loss before changes
ReEER in working capital (31,167) (20,448)
FER D Decrease in inventories 1 42
BWERR 71 & (Increase)/decrease in accounts
IYSEENE N receivable, deposits and
(), prepayments (6,370) 934
FETERIR - HA Increase/(decrease) in accounts
FERt R FEEHE R payable, other payables and
gm,/ Cad) accruals 835 (1,502)
2HKET & Increase/(decrease) in
Zm O ) deposits received 946 (169)
RHIRS & HEH Increase in provision for
20 long service payments 492 29
FE T IR T 3018 Decrease in government lease
TR premiums payable (40) (39)
(4,136) (705)
BEEKA Cash used in operations
WIRE&E carried forward (35,303) (21,153)

Tian Teck Land Limited X&EtEHR QT
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FANERE

=
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Note

Cash used in operations
brought forward

(2 /2R ERIE Tax (paid)/refunded

—ENEBMNER
—(Bff) BRE

BN IR
—ENPEKRE

REEEmMA

MR & FHE

REED
2 WA S

BABRTEEEMNR

(TBiEERYD
ES)
EREhmESH

RERETEEE
PSR
BREAHNE
R 8 55
{5 508
BATHEE
RSN

EIRERE
B ERRIT
210

REZHAMAW
REF8E

— Hong Kong profits tax paid
— Overseas tax (paid)/refunded

— PRC tax paid

Net cash used in
operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Payment for purchase of fixed
assets other than property
under redevelopment

Payment for expenditure on
property under redevelopment

Proceeds from disposal of fixed
assets

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale equity
securities

Payment for purchase of
available-for-sale equity
securities

Dividends received

Increase in pledged bank
deposits

Net cash used in
investing activities

2009

T T
$°000 $°000
(35,303)
(702)
(10)
(185)
(897)
(36,200)
10,975
(474)
(428,106)
33
(2,226)
(419,798)

2008
Tt Tt
$°000 $°000
(21,153)
(456)
111
(146)
(491)
(21,644)
24,199
(2,307)
(104,581)
275
2,942
(201)
19
(79,654)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-_ZZNE=ZA=1+—HBILLEE (LLB¥%|/R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2009 2008
Bt 5 Fx Fx T T
Note $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
mEEE Financing activities
ENEEHEEMSE  Capital element of finance lease
HE AR rentals paid (120) (123)
ERNEEMREMRS  Interest element of finance lease
CORIPSN-iSs) rentals paid (19) (20)
P ENGIE 3o Proceeds in respect of
BERTELR preference shares issued to
A% 5 AT 18 3B preference shareholders of
a subsidiary - 15
ENBFHERE  Interest paid on government
lease premiums payable (119) (121)
RITERFAEIKIE  Proceeds from bank loan 438,000 130,000
D ATERITEFFIE Interest paid on bank loan (5,470) (2,642)
PR EMEERZA  Other borrowing costs paid (1,074) (1,245)
2k AR E Dividends paid - (23,737)
MEFBHREMH Net cash generated from
BEER financing activities 431,198 102,127
i) % RIBREZEBY  Net(decrease)/increase in
W), #INFEHE  cash and cash equivalents (24,800) 829
2008 2007 £ Cash and cash equivalents at
41BN RE 1 April 2008/2007
RREEEY 477,493 478,104
NEEREEN Effect of foreign exchange
2 rates changes (2,272) (1,440)
MR3AHKNERE Cash and cash equivalents
REEEZEEY at 31 March 17 450,421 477,493
FARBEEF 4B AN ERERN—BD The notes on pages 43 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB 5)R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FTESFBE
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Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new interpretations and
an amendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. However,
none of these developments are relevant to the Group’s or the

Company’s operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see

note 30).
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(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2009 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets are stated at their fair value as explained in the

accounting policies set out below:
— investment properties (see note 1(g)); and

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 1(d)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(©

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there

is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the total
profit or loss for the year between minority interests and the

equity shareholders of the Company.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(©

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, are charged against the
Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment
to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports
profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such profits until the
minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the Group

has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i), unless

the investment is classified as held for sale.

Available-for-sale equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in equity securities, other

than investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

The Group designates investments in equity securities as
available-for-sale equity securities. Available-for-sale equity
securities are initially stated at cost, which is their transaction
price unless fair value can be more reliably estimated using
valuation techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction

costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, at each balance sheet date
the fair value of these investments is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in equity.
Dividend income from these investments is recognised in profit
or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(q)fiii).
When these investments are derecognised or impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(d)

Available-for-sale equity securities (Continued)

When there is objective evidence that available-for-sale equity
securities are impaired, the cumulative loss that has been
recognised directly in equity is removed from equity and is
recognised in profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on

that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such

assets is recognised directly in equity.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the

Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include

land held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment

properties is accounted for as described in note 1(g)(i).
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

C)

Investment properties Continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
1(g)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(g).

Investment property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property is classified as investment

property and stated at fair value.

Other properties, plant and equipment

Other properties, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation (see note 1(h)) and

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(g)); and
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1 FESHHE @) 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
9 HEEE@m (9) Leased assets (Continued)
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)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

(Continued)

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of
the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in
fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(i). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as

an investment property (see note 1(g)).

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other

properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings

over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 40 years

after the date of completion

Furniture, fixtures 3-5 years
and equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(h)

Depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

— other properties, plant and equipment; and
— investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is

estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(i)

0)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

—  Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair

value less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

—  Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories comprise of stocks of beverages and consumables,

are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated on the first-in, first-out basis and comprises
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

0)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts, except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful

debts.

Impairment losses of bad and doubtful debts are recognised
when there is objective evidence of impairment and are
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate where the effect of
discounting is material. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about events that have an impact on the asset’s
estimated future cash flows such as significant financial difficulty
of the debtor.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

*)

Accounts and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses for accounts receivable included within
accounts and other receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated

at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash

flow statement.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(n)

(0)

Employee benefits

)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan

which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements

in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements

in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or

loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised

directly in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income

for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at

the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax

credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.
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1 FESFHEHE@ 1 Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(0) PFTHBF (4 (0) Income tax (Continued)
THERABEEHBEEMEBENY The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
BE=ELESLBUATERBFIING liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
ARG AERBFNNEE affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
HEBENVRER(NBESS O not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
N — 20 BB : ARIEENE relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
ANAI(INBEFREZE  RERASE case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
Bl ARG E O R - mMBEfEA reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
T8 B H 15 2K N K B] B B O] 1 B R = the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
B osmBERENEE  AIRER unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

RAEEHREDMNER) o

BEEREHEESRREENAER The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
HMEMESRTRIFEFN - BiE the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
BT EEEBBERAEREY amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
FERITHBERGFTE - RERIE ”ﬁ substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
EMaEHTNEAE - assets and liabilities are not discounted.
rEBEeESREEAEREEAR The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
AHEEREEEMEREE - R balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
REEFERATBHALESEHNE longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
B MR BB - 2% allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
BEEREBEEAENEEERSHAK reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
BRMRE XA R R A& taxable profits will be available.

B BERRBREREED -

AEMELHRBEG R EESES Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
DEFFIR - WHA TS o AHA movements therein, are presented separately from each other
FEEMBBEERSEARRHIAE and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
BAEEAEITHEEARNSTRIBEER tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
EAHHEAE  WARKFANUTNH liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
BAEHERIBRT - A Al A5 BI85 enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

ANEAFIRER B A & tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- AHBEBEEEMAEE: AQ — in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
AR AEEFEIRFREESE Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
HE SRKEEZEEM basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
BEZBE X simultaneously; or

58  Tian Teck Land Limited K& ihZEHFR A 7
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(@)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as

follows:

(i) Golf and recreational club and related services
Revenue arising from golf and recreational club operation

is recognised when the relevant services are provided.

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

("

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in a separate

component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences recognised in equity which relate to
that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit

or loss on disposal.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or

sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or

sale are interrupted or complete.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over

the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;

(iv)  the party is a close family member of a party referred to
in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(v) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for

the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(u)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is
engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of

other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the purposes

of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
For example, segment assets may include inventories,
accounts receivable and properties, plant and equipment.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process,
except to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as

those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one

period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing

expenses.
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Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are property investment and golf

and recreational club operation.

Turnover represents rental income and revenue from golf and
recreational club operation. The amount of each significant category

of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

2009 2008
T Tt
$°000 $'000
WEWMENBLHAS KA Gross rentals from investment properties 9,241 8,777
SRARBELELEWA Revenue from golf and recreational club operation 16,525 17,497
25,766 26,274

o EBER & Segment Reporting
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Business segment information is chosen as the primary reporting
format because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial
reporting. Geographical segment presents similar information to the
business segment as the Group’s revenue and results of property
leasing were derived from Hong Kong and the PRC, while the Group’s
revenue and results of the golf and recreational club operation were
primarily derived from Malaysia. Therefore, no separate geographical

analysis is shown.
The Group comprises the following main business segments:

() Property leasing

Leasing of office and industrial premises to generate rental

income.

(i) Golf and recreational club operation

Providing resort services and facilities to club members,
including golf courses, swimming pool, tennis courts,
gymnasium and American pool tables, and food and beverage

at restaurant outlets.
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(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 i .
3 7EHRE @\ 3 Segment Reporting continued)
@ DIWHMARZELE (@) Segment revenue and results
2 EBA D EELE
Segment revenue Segment results
2009 2008 2009 2008
Fx T Frx Tt
$’000 $’000 $°000 $'000
WMEMRE Property leasing
— &8 KH — Hong Kong and the PRC 9,241 8,777 7,035 6,616
SRAE%e Golf and recreational club
g — SRADR operation — Malaysia 17,338 19,400 (5,971) (6,077)
26,579 28,177 1,064 539
WEMESE Net valuation (losses)/gains on
(E18) /BFFE investment properties (183,097) 470,783
Hi s RE Reversal of impairment loss in
5188 ol respect of other properties 4,008 4,014
KOEMEAMEA Unallocated other revenue 10,857 23,662
R B A £ W s Unallocated operating income
REA and expenses (41,816) (27,104)
T (1R /E R (Loss)/profit from operations (208,984) 471,894
B & AR Finance costs (138) (141)
BBiAT (E18) % F  (Loss)/profit before taxation (209,122) 471,753
FRiE Income tax 35,304 (50,843)
KNEFE(EIR) /EF)  (Loss)/profit for the year (173,818) 420,910
DHT Analysed by:
R Turnover 25,766 26,274
HiA—BEDE Other revenue — allocated 813 1,903
26,579 28,177
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3 Segment Reporting (continued)

b)) PHEERERE (b) Segment assets and liabilities
BEE a&
Assets Liabilities
2009 2008 2009 2008
SEo T SEEE T
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
WMEMRE Property leasing
—BABRF — Hong Kong and the PRC 6,050,049 5,658,909 201,018 60,597
SREAkELS Golf and recreational club
L — B R operation — Malaysia 205,277 238,110 10,883 13,062
6,255,326 | 5,897,019 211,901 73,659
KOBIBR Unallocated items 553,333 584,394 | 1,289,418 886,462
6,808,659 | 6,481,413 | 1,501,319 960,121
c HttonHEFR (c) Other segment information
e BEARMAX
Depreciation Capital expenditure
2009 2008 2009 2008
SEo Tt SEEE Tt
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
MEMRE Property leasing
— BB KT — Hong Kong and the PRC — — 573,845 137,912
SREAkELS Golf and recreational club
e — RS operation — Malaysia 4,995 5,302 351 1,570
4,995 5,302 574,196 139,482
KO HEIEA Unallocated items 2,944 2,956 123 737
7,939 8,258 574,319 140,219
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(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4 HiWw AR (EIEB) Uz 4 Other Revenue and Net (Loss)/Income

FE
2009 2008
Fr T
$000 $000
Hiug A Other revenue
FEWA Interest income 10,597 23,414
EWBEHHRBMA Dividend income from listed securities 33 41
HAh Others 1,040 2,110
11,670 25,565
Hih (FE), WERE Other net (loss)/income
BEETFEEE Net (loss)/profit on
(B18|) /BN FE disposal of fixed assets ®) 249
INEEE 5 Net foreign exchange
(E18) /&BFF8E (losses)/gains (1,352) 111
EEAHEE#ER Transfer from equity on disposal of
BEMBEER available-for-sale equity securities (22) 2,191
(1,382) 2,651
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BRELAT (B1R) A e ek (GEA)

5 (Loss)/Profit Before Taxation

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2009 2008
T T
$°000 $'000
(@ ®BMERAK (@) Finance costs
JE {5 BT 418 F &, Interest on government lease
premiums payable 119 121
BMEHERENTHER Finance charges on obligations
under finance leases 19 20
RITEZFE Interest on bank loan 5,883 3,555
HAbfEE R A Other borrowing costs 1,004 1,228
BER AR Total borrowing costs 7,025 4,924
o MAERERYERN Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
B EER AR property under redevelopment * (6,887) (4,783)
138 141
* BERAEESFI2% (=T N\ F: * The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 1.21% (2008:

3.68%) &AL ©

3.68%) per annum.

2009 2008
S Tt
$°000 $’000
(b) BIRK (b)  Staff costs

FEHFURAREEI MK Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,389 964
He -  IAREMET Salaries, wages and other benefits 23,857 24,857
25,246 25,821
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(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5 KRFA(EE), &F @ 5  (Loss)/Profit Before Taxation (continued)
BRERT (B518) SRR E MR (GEA) (&) (Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
(Continued)
2009 2008
Fx T
$°000 $'000
(c) EHMEE (c) Otheritems
"EYMFEHES Gross rental income from
LN L investment properties (9,241) 8,777)
W BEERX Less: Direct outgoings 974 933
(8,267) (7,844)
KEHEER Operating lease charges:
=ERENHE minimum lease payments
—ERS — property rentals 785 —
JE U BR FURE B 1B Impairment losses on accounts receivable 283 1,086
FERA Cost of inventories 1,451 1,520
% 2B BN & Auditor’s remuneration
— ZH R — audit services 901 852
— MRS — tax services 134 155
— H AR 7% — other services 365 256
e Depreciation 7,939 8,258
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6 EEME 6 Directors’ Remuneration

BIBEFEBCATIED) E161 155 H ey = Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
EHET Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
e EZH K 2009
ESHe RENFE B E AL sHEIAR wm
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
Fr T Fr Fr FTr
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000 $000
BiTES Executive Directors
EE e Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,609 700 - 2,409
BB MR Cheong Kheng Lim 100 3,017* 700 18 3,835
EmiE Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,916 300 - 2,316
BakRE Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,443 300 - 1,843
= Cheong Chong Ling 100 795 120 18 1,033
EBITES Non-executive Directors
sl Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 - - 650
2|#E & Lau Wah Sum 100 550 - - 650

BIYFBTES Independent Non-

executive Directors

BEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - - - 340
k== Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 - — - 340
S 7T Tse Pang Yuen 170 - - - 170

1,550 9,880 2,120 36 13,586
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6 EEMEw@

6 Directors’ Remuneration continued)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

REBEEBCRBED) F161 1R RO E
=M2mT - (&)

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (Continued)

HITES Executive Directors

BEE Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,884 700 - 2,684

BIEM Cheong Kheng Lim 100 3,257 700 18 4,075

B Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,892 300 - 2,292

ELT Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,470 300 - 1,870

EHEE Cheong Chong Ling 100 782 120 18 1,020

FHTES Non-executive Directors

gl Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 - - 650

2|ER Lau Wah Sum 100 550 — — 650

BIYFHTES Independent Non-

executive Directors

AEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - - - 340

hER Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 - - - 340

Bl Tse Pang Yuen 170 - - - 170
1,550 10,385 2,120 36 14,091

* EHEITBEREEMEEREEEY * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential

FEMEF - R EEA 49 /525380007T
(ZZZ)\% : 25380007C) °

properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental
value of approximately $2,538,000 (2008: $2,538,000).
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7 Individuals with Highest Emoluments

8 Income Tax

The five highest paid individuals for the years 2008 and 2009 are all

directors of the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 6.

GEEBRRFITNTEH (@) Taxation in the consolidated income
= statement represents:
2009 2008
T T
$’000 $'000
AHFE—FBRBEH  Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax
AEFZHIELEE Provision for the year 471 602
AEBIE—BHIRF Current tax — Overseas and PRC
REZHIEERE Provision for the year 195 158
NEFEEFBAT Over-provision in respect of prior years — (44)
195 114
EER A Deferred tax
WEMENRBEMNEE Changes in fair value of investment properties (30,389) 77,681
FREEERMESMER  Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (5,581) (4,111)
FEEF KRR Effect of overall decrease in tax rate on
2007F4 B1HH deferred tax balances at 1 April 2007
BB IR &SR TE - (23,443)
(35,970) 50,127
(35,304) 50,843
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74

(@)

REBTZRIT TN EH
HA . (&)

RZZEENF-_A=-++H  FE
BFATRERNERE-_STN\FE
“ETNFRUFER - BB EF
BB EBH175% T FHE165% © (K
AEFIER)R=_ZZNFNAR
BiEB EREAEENARF Y
BwEE B THRATELEA -
At REEBEREEBNME
BRI TE & E M A &R LL16.5%
(ZZTENF 1 165%) I EFAE R
EEFEREBRIZAFE/ G
JERFRURFIA165% (Z T )\ F ¢
17.5% ) B 5T & o

BINE R A MR IBIABREBER
ERMBRTHEGE - FERER
BPBEEBMEERNERR X

B o
>t

Tian Teck Land Limited K& EHR A T

8

Income Tax (continued)

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents: (Continued)

On 27 February 2008, the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region announced a decrease in the
profits tax rate in Hong Kong from 17.5% to 16.5% with effect
from the year of assessment 2008/09. The Revenue Bill was
passed in June 2008. This decrease is taken into account in
the preparation of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements. Accordingly, the relevant deferred tax assets and
liabilities at the balance sheet date are calculated at 16.5%
(2008: 16.5%) and the provision for Hong Kong profits tax is
calculated at 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable

profits for the year.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries. PRC
taxation is calculated based on the applicable rate of taxation in
accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations of the
PRC.



8 MBH = 8 Income Tax (Continued)

b) FAEHR(ER) ZTHME (b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense
i) ﬁ MEGTEZT(EIE) and accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax
%5 B % BR rates:
2009 2008
T T
$°000 $'000
BRELAT (B51B) R F (Loss)/profit before taxation (209,122 471,753
HRBEAEEBRZRESEF  Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation,
RE AR R E R A calculated at the rates applicable to
(B1B) % FMEEIE  profits in the countries concerned (40,406) 84,257
TAHR S MBS E  Taxeffect of non-deductible expenses 7,483 818
BERW I E  Tax effect of non-taxable income (2,410) (5,026)
5& WRE R EEED Tax effect of temporary differences not
MIEZE recognised (516) (1,239)
REAMBRERNTETE  Taxeffect of unused tax losses not
EBEMNHREZE recognised 545 5
NEEFE R A EERBER Tax effect of prior year's unrecognised
M BEBEEORETE tax losses utilised this year - (©6)
AKEEHEEF Effect on opening deferred tax balances
ifn ¥ 305 AE 75 T8 HA 47 resulting from a change in tax rate
EHREKNEE during the year - (23,443)
NEF Fé MR A FE R Tax effect of temporary differences
BN E A recognised this year which are expected
A %ﬁ HERER to reverse at a rate lower than
MR TE & the rate currently applicable - (4,459)
NEFEEEBT Over-provision in prior years - (44)
EREFE(HKE) T H Actual tax (credit)/expense (35,304) 50,843
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(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 FTEH @ 8 Income Tax (continued)
c EEBERMROAXNEA (c) Current taxation in the balance sheets
BB 3‘—’_'; represents:
wE NN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
T3 7 T 7
$000 $'000 $000 $'000
RNEFZEEFNBR  Provision for Hong Kong

i} profits tax for the year 471 602 270 439
ENEHFER Provisional profits tax paid (461) 361) (328) (237)
10 241 (58) 202
YE N K R B FR T8 Overseas and PRC taxation 18 18 - —
28 259 (58) 202
FEUPTISHR Tax recoverable (58) — (58) —
FERTFTIS R Tax payable 86 259 - 202
28 259 (58) 202

76  Tian Teck Land Limited K& hZEHFR A 7



8 FTER @) 8 Income Tax (continued)

d EBRRELEHRIEEEMN (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
aE: recognised:
0 A& )  The Group
EEGREEEBBRERY The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
EEFIE(EE) /AENA recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
MEBDFMAFEFEESHUT - movements during the year are as follows:
i 38 A8 B
RERBE WENHE
MEER ZBE BEER WM

Depreciation
Revaluation  allowances
of investment in excess of

and hotel the related

properties depreciation Tax loss Total
F Fr Fx Fx
$°000 $°000 $’000 $’000
RETHEEN Deferred tax
EEBIE : arising from:
2007 F4 /1R At 1 April 2007 720,592 (45) (4,753) 715,794
EEES Charged/(credited) to
mer (5t A) profit or loss 53,964 346 (4,183) 50,127
FFARE Credited to reserves (17,613) - — (17,613)
720083 A 31 H At 31 March 2008 756,943 301 (8,936) 748,308
200854 A1 H At 1 April 2008 756,943 301 (8,936) 748,308
FiEmAR (Credited)/charged to
(5T A) Bk profit or loss (30,389) 194 (5,775) (35,970)
20093 H31H At 31 March 2009 726,554 495 (14,711) 712,338
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8 FriE® &) 8 Income Tax (continued)
d EEIEEHREBEEEMN (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
=L C ) recognised: (Continued)
(i) ARAF (i)  The Company
EEEEBERBERART The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
TMIE B E R MHERK D MR F the balance sheet and the movements during the year
E#BET are as follows:

RETHERERN Deferred tax
EFERIE - arising from:

2007 F4 A1H At 1 April 2007 16,857 706 17,563
TEREIETNEG Charged to profit or loss 1,644 11 1,655
20083 A31H At 31 March 2008 18,501 77 19,218
20084 A1H At 1 April 2008 18,501 717 19,218
w1 D (5T A) 1% (Credited)/charged to profit or loss (809) 51 (758)
FR2009F3 A31H At 31 March 2009 17,692 768 18,460
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Income Tax (continued)

/

/

gl

NAERRRERGABESE 2B
A A A BB R R #91,159,000 JT
—ZEZF )\ : 19,359,0007T ) % A o

d ERIEEHREBEEEMN (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
=L EC ) recognised: (Continued)
rE b NN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
e Tt e Tt
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
HEEBERMER  Netdeferred tax assets
FY I REFL 18 recognised on the
BEFHE balance sheets (1,286) (1,565) - -
HEBEBBRER  Net deferred tax liabilities
A3 AE %)EE g recognised on the
AE%E balance sheets 713,624 749,873 18,460 19,218
712,338 748,308 18,460 19,218
€ KREANWELEMREBEE (e) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
R F10MENSETEE /& In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(0),
RAREEEEANB G EAEME the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
BESARRERD G T UK cumulative tax losses of $170,821,000 (2008: $172,278,000)
HEBELUENEREE K& and depreciation in excess of related depreciation allowances
i A& B A170,821,000 L ( Z 2 ZE N of $5,707,000 (2008: $10,157,000) as it is not probable that
172,278,000 7T ) HY B 5T B 15 5 future taxable profits against which the losses and the
B M A5707000 L (ZFEZ )\ F : deductible temporary differences can be utilised will be available
10,157,0007T ) M B @A A T & & 5t in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not
BN ERREENELEHIEE expire under current tax legislation.
B RBRTHE  E&HBEEER
HERRE -
9 NRAERREEM(EE) 9 (Loss)/Profit Attributable to Equity

Shareholders of the Company

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of $1,159,000 (2008: $19,359,000) which

has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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10 RE 10 Dividends
@ XFEENLAAREERR (a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
iz B the Company attributable to the year
2009 2008
T Tt
$°000 $'000
TERESMHEEE No interim dividend declared and paid
(20084 : ®R%21L) (2008: 2 cents per share) - 9,495
Fﬁ? BEREERE No final dividend proposed after
TR AREAR B the balance sheet date (2008: $Nil)
(2008¢ D) - -
- 9,495
b BRE—BRFEFEENR (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
AEERE AREAFE the Company attributable to the previous
HERZFIHWERE financial year, approved and paid during the
year
2009 2008
T T
$°000 $'000
mEERNLE—UVHREEN No final dividend in respect of the previous
RERIE B AN L & financial year, approved and paid during
5 (20084 : A% 31L) the year (2008: 3 cents per share) — 14,242
11 BR(EE) BF—EAKX 11 (Loss)/Earnings Per Share — Basic and
N #EE Diluted
BREN(EE) BFREBAFEERN The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the loss
N AR = IR JE G & 186,392,000 7T attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $86,392,000
ZTT )\ 522122600070 ) 2 B B (2008: profit of $221,226,000) and 474,731,824 (2008: 474,731,824)
1TH R 15474731824 B ( —Z T Z )\ F shares in issue during the year. There were no potential dilutive shares
A74731824 R ) st HE - ZTZENF K in existence in 2008 and 2009.

“ERNFUEEBEATEERND -

80  Tian Teck Land Limited K& hZEHFR A 7



12 BlEEE 12 Fixed Assets

@ A& (@) The Group
REM¥ Hit¥  BERRE
Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERGER
BEERYE BENXE Nt Hitt¥ 3% HihEE Nt B
Properties held
for leasing
Property under and capital Other
redevelopment appreciation Sub-total properties Other assets Sub-total Total
T Tr T Fr Fr T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $°000 $000 $000
RASMEE Cost or valuation:
A2008F4B1H  At1Aprl 2008 5,480,000 242,127 5,722,127 355,741 47,295 403,036 6,125,163
ER AR Exchange adjustments - (7,965) (7,965) (39,101) (4,506) (43,607) (51,572)
#E Additions 573,845 - 573,845 18 456 474 574,319
RE Disposals - - - - (2,988) (2,988) (2,988)
ARBEAZ Fair value adjustments (180,845) (2,252) (183,097 - - - (183,097
A200043H31H At 31 March 2009 5,873,000 231,910 6,104,910 316,658 40,257 356,915 6,461,825
RE: Representing:
A Cost - - - 316,658 40,257 356,915 356,915
B — 20004 Valuation — 2009 5,873,000 231,910 6,104,910 - - - 6,104,910
5,873,000 231,910 6,104,910 316,658 40,257 356,915 6,461,825
RIHE ! Accumulated
depreciation:
R2008F4A1H At 1 April 2008 - - - 87,893 43,342 131,235 131,235
ERAE Exchange adjustments - - - (8,974) 4,219) (13,193) (13,193)
AEENE Charge for the year - - - 6,551 1,388 7,939 7,939
EEREED Written back on
disposals - - - - (2,980) (2,980) (2,980)
REEEER Reversal of impairment
loss - - - (4,008) - (4,008) (4,008)
20093 HA31H At 31 March 2009 - - - 81,462 37,531 118,993 118,993
REFE Net book value:
M2009%3HA31H At 31 March 2009 5,873,000 231,910 6,104,910 235,196 2,726 237,922 6,342,832
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Notes to the Financial Statements
r (LLB# %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 EEEE @) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)

(@ REBE (@) (@) The Group (Continued)

BAHMEE : Cost or valuation:
M2007E4B18 At 1 April 2007 4,890,000 217,240 5,107,240 334,647 44,599 379,246 5,486,486
ERRE Exchange adjustments - 6,192 6,192 20,954 2,514 23,468 29,660
BE Additions 137,912 — 137,912 140 2,167 2,307 140,219
RE Disposals — - - — (1,985) (1,985) (1,985)
RAEBERAE Fair value adjustments 452,088 18,695 470,783 - - - 470,783
A200843H31H At 31 March 2008 5,480,000 242127 5,722,127 365,741 47,295 403,036 6,125,163
R&: Representing:
B Cost - - - 365,741 47,295 408,036 403,036
f& {6 — 2008 Valuation — 2008 5,480,000 242,127 5,722,127 - - - 5,722,127
5,480,000 242,127 5,722,127 355,741 47,295 403,036 6,125,163

RitiTE: Accumulated

depreciation:
R2007F4A1H At 1 April 2007 — — - 80,572 41,231 121,803 121,803
EX AR Exchange adjustments — - - 4,807 2,340 7,147 7,147
KEEHE Charge for the year — — - 6,528 1,730 8,258 8,258
BEREE Written back on

disposals - - - - (1,959) (1,959) (1,959)
AR EE R Reversal of impairment

loss - - - (4,014) - (4,014) (4,014)
200843 H31H At 31 March 2008 - - - 87,893 43,342 131,235 131,235
BREEE Net book value:
M2008%3A31H At 31 March 2008 5,480,000 242,127 5,722,127 267,848 3,953 271,801 5,993,928
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12 EEEE @) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)

b) A2F (o) The Company

ih{E : Valuation:

72008 2007%F4 A1 8 At 1 April 2008/2007 142,400 126,600

AREEFAE Fair value adjustments (4,900) 15,800

M3 A31H At 31 March 137,500 142,400
) VEREFEWNIAAOT : (c) The analysis of net book value of properties

is as follows:

EEB In Hong Kong
—RHHEE — Long leases 33,547 35,853 - —
—HHEE — Medium-term leases 6,029,841 | 5,642,005 137,500 142,400
EH BRI Outside Hong Kong
— K AEEME — Freehold 254,918 293,491 - -
—HHEE — Medium-term leases 21,800 18,626 — —
6,340,106 | 5,989,975 137,500 142,400
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(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BlEEE @)

84

(d

BEMERTEEEZTWE  FETL
¥PUMETERE MHEIXKE
METENRELXESNE TE
iz + DA R — BT 30 55 PR 78 38 R R e
TR R K A ZERE T - ¥
EOEUREAN —BEIEXRER
MIEREEFHE TEMN - MEDE
FEY)E R AR B R TG 58 A = /B R
RESHYE -

RZFZAF=ZA=1+—H R
BEAENTENKRENEREAERR
— 98 7 3 B RN S A & B AT

@ﬁﬁ@“ (EETAHBHEABA
EMBgERGBZER AW

ﬁZ%%%E@E&%Eﬁ%
BREEBE KR ETER B
A EBI ¥z mERER (R
MERR) 2RMBSHEUR S E

REGHEEBELT  BEHEHSK
AB AW ATBL EM & E O
FHSWAENBELE N - R
—EEAFE=ZA=1+—8  uREK
AWM KAXER LT HWHSRAR
— [ % 37 & 2 {4 & B VPC Alliance
(JB) Sdn. Bhd. & T (B & A 1T
E R

H it B B R L -
.

HE - RER

REEBEREER  AEEUR
EMERANAERAFERTT
“EENFER) o

—

Tian Teck Land Limited X&EtEHR QT

12 Fixed Assets (Continued)

(d)

Investment properties comprise property under redevelopment,
certain floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre, certain units of
Good Luck Industrial Building and Yi An Plaza, and a piece of
freehold land held for an undetermined future purpose in
Malaysia. Other properties comprise an industrial, two
commercial and two residential properties in Hong Kong, and a

golf and recreational club in Malaysia.

The investment properties in Hong Kong and in the PRC were
revalued at 31 March 2009 by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers who have
among their staff Fellows of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category
of properties being valued, on a market value basis in their
existing states by reference to comparable market transactions
and where appropriate on the basis of capitalisation of the net
rental income allowance for reversionary income potential. The
piece of freehold land in Malaysia was revalued on a market
value basis at 31 March 2009 by VPC Alliance (JB) Sdn. Bhd.,

an independent firm of professional valuers in Malaysia.

Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor

vehicles.

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of motor vehicles

held under finance leases of the Group was $Nil (2008: $Nil).



12 BlEEE @)

(¢),

REBEUKETRERLREME -
EeMENRREA LA EN A
HME+6& TAE#ERELDH
HiEER  ERMBERHETEN
BAE - E_TTENF=A=+—H
IFFERBERPERABAB K
B & A1,499,0007T (ZTZTN\F ¢
1,614,0007T) °

LB ERAEEREMTESN
AREMETENMENE B
DRREEYE -

REBRETTRG S QEAER
B Bk ) BT B R A
mT -

12 Fixed Assets (Continued)

)

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases run on monthly basis or for an initial period
of two to ten years, with an option to renew the lease after that
date at which time all terms are renegotiated. Contingent
rentals recognised as income in the income statement during
the year ended 31 March 2009 were $1,499,000 (2008:
$1,614,000).

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are receivable as follows:

rEE AT

The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Tr T Fx Tt
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
1F K Within 1 year 7,534 4,850 4,012 3,877
1FBESFNR After 1 year but within 5 years 51,264 1,082 1,569 1,082
5% & After 5 years 67,105 — - —
125,903 5,932 5,581 4,959

B &5 15 ¥ B (h) Reversal of impairment loss

7 P 5 2R 7 38 9 E fth 4 2R B S
B [E 5400800 ( =TT N
F 140140007 ) 22 % 7 AVPC
Alliance (JB) Sdn. Bhd. /£ = 2 & h4F
ZARENGEERSETURR -

The reversal of impairment loss on other properties located in
Malaysia amounting to $4,008,000 (2008: $4,014,000) was
recognised by reference to the valuation report prepared by

VPC Alliance (JB) Sdn. Bhd. in March 2009.
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(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 TEEE &) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)
() EBEIEKH () Pledge of assets
REEBEBEREER  RTEXRE At the balance sheet date, the property under redevelopment
LA BR B A5,8730000007C (= ZE N\ with carrying value of $5,873,000,000 (2008: $5,480,000,000)
1 5480,0000007C ) B EZE H ¥ was pledged to secure the bank loan (see note 21).

EERER (2RME21)

= 2E X Z . . . .
13 RHIB AR MER 13 Interest in Subsidiaries
KA F
The Company
2009 2008
I Tz
$°000 $'000
& (R A) Investments, at cost
— 3k Lk — Unlisted shares 14,363 14,363
— &E LMD — Shares listed in Hong Kong 139,226 139,226
153,589 153,589
B OREBE Less: Impairment losses (14,363) (14,363)
139,226 139,226
NG Amounts due from subsidiaries 150,852 152,251
B R EEE Less: Impairment losses (55,025) (59,110)
235,053 232,367
RO E Market value of listed shares 2,088,384 2,596,278
KB AR RBEBELBEERE £8 - Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have
I 4% & 7F 2 R o no fixed repayment terms.
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13 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)

FIFEERRNERE

& AR 32 &% EEITR

R i B HMERARFEE
Place of

incorporation

Name of company and operation

S| B B 5O IR
BRAA

Associated
International

Hotels Limited

Sparkland
Investments

Limited

BiRARA A

Harkam Limited

Farish Limited

S (EE)
BRAA
Metropolitan
(International)

Limited

Associated
International

Resorts Limited

e
Hong Kong

e
Hong Kong

e
Hong Kong

HE
Hong Kong

5
Hong Kong

e
Hong Kong

Particulars of issued

and paid up capital

360,000,000 1% & A%
EE1 T

360,000,000 shares of
$1 each

2R I mE(E 1 TR

2 shares of $1 each

2R R E 1 TR

2 shares of $1 each

2B EE I T,

2 shares of $1 each

1,600,000 i% & % I &
57T

1,600,000 shares of
$5 each

2R FREE
107t & 19

2 shares of $10 each

Fir 4t 35 EE B

Proportion of ownership interest

AEEH BAFAF

BRER ®E
Group’s held
effective by the
holding
50.01% 46.41%
100% 100%
100% —
100% 100%
100% 100%
50.01% —

B Bt
DREFH

held by

Company subsidiary

3.6%

100%

100%

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

EFEER

Principal activity

FAEWER
REER
Property and

investment holding

BEER

Investment holding

FAEWER
REER
Property and

investment holding

HIE AR

Nominee services

FAEWE
Property holding

BEER

Investment holding
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(LLB# %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 KRB AR EE @)

Dalwhinnie Limited & &
Hong Kong

13 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)

2B EE

107C 15

2 shares of $10 each

HEFRAA BE 200,000 f% & B

Diamond Town Hong Kong HEE1TKGD

Limited 200,000 shares of
$1 each

Austin Hills Land &2k P gp 21,000,002 i% & i%

Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia EESKADT
1 TR

21,000,002 shares

Austin Hills Country 55 2k 7 25

Resort Bhd. Malaysia

of MYR1 each

10,001,285 % & A%

HEESKREET
17T AR 17 e 754 Ik
BEREGREME
BRI
17T iR 17

10,001,285 shares of

Austin Hills Country 7 fin 3

Resort Pte. Ltd.  Singapore

MYR1 each and 754
preference shares
of MYR1 each

2B EE

¥ ON3E TTA TR

2 shares of SGD1 each
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50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

100%

100%

100%

99.98%

100%

REZEK

Investment holding

ESE=EZES
Property holding

BEERK

Investment holding

BRI KE
= B R IR
A
Proprietor and
operator of a golf
and recreational

club

HEHRIE
Marketing agent



13 RSB R B RER @)

= AR L R
R B

Place of

DEEME

incorporation

Name of company and operation

Austin Hills View HRF
Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia

Austin Hills Vilas Bk FHn
Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia

13 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)

FT ik 7 2 L A
Proportion of ownership interest
BETR REEHW BAERQH FA B
BEREFRE ERER B8 DQREE FEXK
Group’s held

Particulars of issued effective by the held by

and paid up capital holding Company subsidiary Principal activity

2l B R E(E 50.01% - 100% FFAEM*
BRI T Property holding
17T R 17

2 shares of MYR1 each

cREREE 50.01% — 100% FEBEME
BRFE T Property holding
17T iR

2 shares of MYR1 each

REBEZEZ_ZZNF=ZA=Z+—H

During the year ended 31 March 2008, Austin Hills Country Resort

IEFE A -+ Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.
([AHCRB) MM K M ELGH & B %
TETEHESRKAEDRTITHELRK - X
RESEEHNESERS BELRRA
RELTERBRREFEERNKEE - I
EREGCRASRMRIKEES N R -

EEEARBERBAKEGERE (ARAE=1
FTE) @ SEELROER AR
BEREINEBEREBERZENEBR
IAEBHAHCRBE £ € A TE Al B AE K
KA G FE BB (L {E% 3 X AHCRB AT 4
FEABRBREZ DMK EFE)
IR RGO ERALBIR - ROELER
REBBDABRALT AR MEEE
EEE -

EZER/LANBNBETHARERE
AHCRBFiF B HEm M EL EAU T EK -

Bhd. (“AHCRB”) allotted various classes of preference shares of
Malaysian Ringgit 1 each to members of the golf and recreational club
in exchange for their paid-in membership fees deposits. These
shareholders have the same voting rights as the existing ordinary
shareholders and are entitled to use the facilities within the golf and

recreational club.

During the terms or at the expiry of the preference shares which
ranges from 5 to 30 years, the holders of these shares have the option
to convert their shares into ordinary shares, by paying the difference
between the consideration of allotment of ordinary and preference
shares or such other price as the Board of Directors of AHCRB may
decide which shall entitle the holders of such conversion golf
membership of the club in perpetuity subject to any adjustments in
relation to the issued price based on the instalment scheme offered by
AHCRB. Should the preference shares not be converted into ordinary

shares at the expiry date, they will be redeemed at par value.

The Directors consider that the dilution effect of the share issued on

the Group’s interest in AHCRB is not material.
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(LLB# %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 AIMEHERERIES 14 Available-for-sale Equity Securities

BB LLTHREREZES Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
(EmE) at market value 1,369 3,621

15 EWERFA » sl RFEIRK 15 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments

& U BE 20 Accounts receivable 6,580 7,696 297 300
o RIEBRERH Less: Allowance for bad
(FFFE15(0)) and doubtful debts
(note 15(b)) (5,146) (5,635) - —
1,434 2,061 297 300
HIESSENES Deposits and prepayments 8,830 2,510 226 225
10,264 4,571 523 525
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15 EWWERF - 5T R FE{T = 15 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments continued)

(%)

@

AR AT (@)

REEBERERER  BEEREK
R BT BTN BRA 9 FE R R
(EHIBRERER) MRE DT

Ageing analysis

Included in accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments are
accounts receivable (net of allowance for bad and doubtful

debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the balance

W sheet date:
5 AT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
SEEE T ST Tt
$°000 $’000 $’000 $'000
SR80 HA Current 498 542 120 124
BHEI L R1E A Less than 1 month past due 174 175 102 84
w1 =318 A 1 to 3 months past due 231 337 50 59
#HERRE B 31E A More than 3 months but
BL 1218 A less than 12 months
past due 524 1,006 18 32
WHAFRB 121 A More than 12 months
past due 7 1 7 1
B Amounts past due 936 1,519 177 176
1,434 2,061 297 300

BRRHEEEERBORR —RE
FlERE ARFT60REEIE - MM
FHEXBORFKAERERE
FAF14RAEE - REBEEBE
H o 5 1551 3 MY £ 25()

Debts are generally due after 60 days in respect of golf and
recreational club operation and within 14 days in respect of
property leasing from the date of billing. Further details on the

Group’s credit policy are set out in note 25(a).
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15 EUBEF - sT£€ R FE{+F 15 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

(&) Prepayments continued)
(b) FEWERFURE (b) Impairment of accounts receivable
FRARBRETEHEESHOT The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

rE AT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
T Tt T Tt
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
#2008 2007 & At 1 April 2008/2007
4718 5,635 5,194 — —
DR EEE  Impairment losses
recognised 283 1,086 - —
P REUgE Uncollectible amounts
i written off ®) (1,040) - _
ERER Exchange differences (764) 395 - —
M3A31TH At 31 March 5,146 5,635 - -
RZZEZAF=ZF=+—H & At 31 March 2009, the Group’s accounts receivable of
SEMEWERRTE @R A $5,233,000 (2008: $5,781,000) were individually determined to
T 7= R 7 BR 3 75,233,000 T be impaired. Management assessed that only a portion of the
(ZZZN\F :5781,0007T) - EEE receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific
Ear b I FE & R B & & AR K allowance for bad and doubtful debts of $5,146,000 (2008:
ATl E - Eit o BRERARZRE $5,635,000) were recognised.

TE %48 55,146,0000T ( Z 2T )\ F -
5,635,0007T ) °
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15 FE U BR #X -

(%)

©

7l & R A AR

Prepayments continued)

R 8 B Y B U BR K

A Rl Sk EE BB AR R B R (E FY UL
BRARE DT

()

15 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Accounts receivable that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as

follows:
& AT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Fx T 3 T
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
K@ EAs 8 AIFE Neither past due nor impaired 498 542 120 124
wEEI LD R1EA Less than 1 month past due 174 175 102 84
BHI1 =38 A 1 to 3 months past due 231 337 50 59
w1 EfRE B3 (E A More than 3 months but
BA121E A less than 12 months
past due 437 860 18 32
BEIFRE12{8 A More than 12 months
past due 7 1 7 1
849 1,373 177 176
1,347 1,915 297 300

SR 3 B =8 99 75 L 1 ) E KR R 59
B R A R AR B
BE -

EAMERERENEBUERSR
KEAEEARFEBEIRN R
BUEP - BEERA  REMN
ERB BN EEERTEEANR
2 MmARGRINDEE R 28K
B - P A AR AL ET SRR E 2 o

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a

wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history

of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a

number of independent customers that have a good track

record with the Group. Based on past experience, management

believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect

of these balances as there has not been a significant change in

credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.
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(LLB# %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16 S /WFRITER 16 Pledged Bank Deposits

NRZETZNF=A=+—8 " BT EFEX As at 31 March 2009, bank deposits were pledged to a designated
EAEER  UWER—RETRITHIE

TER(2RME21)

17 ReRBEEEY

bank to secure the bank loan (see note 21).

17 Cash and Cash Equivalents

94

2009

Tt

$'000
RITEHER Deposits with banks 446,103 472,969 4,279 1,920
ROTTFRERE Cash at bank and in hand 4,318 4,524 827 952
450,421 477,493 5,106 2,872
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18

FEASBRR ~ Ef A R
FEsT 8 A

% £ 2 B FE R B 3 A943,040,000 JT
(ZZZT)\F : 27280007T) b - FrE FELS

REERBBEREER BEEERNMNIE
R HMEMREESERANENER

18

Accounts Payable, Other Payables and
Accruals

All of the accounts payable, other payables and accruals except for
$43,040,000 (2008: $2,728,000), mainly represented retention monies

payable, are expected to be settled within one year.

Included in accounts payable, other payables and accruals are

accounts payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance

REBRE T T sheet date:
rE b N
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
T T T T
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
18 A sk E & Due within 1 month or on
i AN B H demand 350 376 - —
118 A & 1831E A Due after 1 month but within
A £ B8R 3 months 495 619 - -
31 A 12186 1E A Due after 3 months but within
A 5 B8R 6 months 253 298 - -
61E A& 181218 A Due after 6 months but within
A EI| Hf 12 months — 7 _ _
121 A 1% 2 2 Due after 12 months 28 290 - -
FETER AR R Total accounts payable 1,126 1,590 - —
BRI EMER Accruals and retention
ERREMREF  monies payable for
redevelopment work 195,873 56,678 - -
HAth R % Other payables and
EEtEM accruals 10,468 10,365 1,189 1,350
207,467 68,633 1,189 1,350
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(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

19 BWET £ 19 Deposits Received
BERFTeTERHERSNEERS Deposits received represent mainly rental deposits and membership
WEHAERN —FRNEN - deposits and are not expected to be settled within one year.

20 REIRB & EH 20 Provision for Long Service Payments

rEH

The Group

Frx

$°000

200844 A 18 At 1 April 2008 1,282

REEZHIRER Provision made for the year 492

FA200943 A 318 At 31 March 2009 1,774
RIEBTBCEBEN)  NEBEBERKL Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
EBRAFHIALEME T REREBERE & to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
K F R THEER MR BRAE circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
HIZEBEIRENGT S LREFE - of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
MERANEBRRKFEIRNHAEBEEH employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced by
MR ERBHE  c AEBULEREME entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
MEEEATRFIBEBOER - attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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21 RITER —BIKH

21 Bank Loan — Secured

NR_ETZANF=F=+—8 " EX At 31 March 2009, the bank loan was repayable as follows:
BRI -
rEEH
The Group
2009 2008
T T
$°000 $°'000
2F1BESFA After 2 years but within 5 years | 568,000 | 130,000

WZZZEXE+A=-+AH  KAFHKH
BAR — Sl BEEEERR AR E—
fE 88 17 5] 3 — 19 & #£1,200,000,000 7T &)
MEME - ZRITHMERNUN—MHBERE
MaE12emiih ST ANF=A=1+—
A # {85,873,000,000 ;L ( = T T )\ & :
5480,000000 7T ) I E B R ) X # &F —
B E A R e R E AT ek A &Y
“$§%m%fﬁ§WEm%%¢Eﬁ
B -R_ZETZNF=ZA=Z+—H BB
Fl #912 B %8 #£568,000000 T (= EE N
F 130@000007u)°

=

/1

ZH B A RRRT %ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ/
BRrAMETHAEERBRLE
BNRBRTERE  LALRTE
—ERREKF o MZMBRRER
Lk RIZARGBMANE B8 BRI
ER -AEEEEHERRLGENA
URE - R_FTNF=ZA=1—
%M B A R IR R AT R R
R (ZEZNF - |\ o

ﬂﬂkmDBi&t*%Ni\l;
T2 S = N 1

[]HI'

af

On 20 October 2006, the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, entered into a facility agreement with a
bank for banking facilities of up to $1,200,000,000. The banking
facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first fixed legal
charge over the property under redevelopment referred to in note
12(a) with an aggregate value of $5,873,000,000 as at 31 March 2009
(2008: $5,480,000,000) and a first floating charge over certain assets
placed on or used in the redevelopment. The facilities were utilised to
the extent of $568,000,000 as at 31 March 2009 (2008:
$130,000,000).

The subsidiary’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfiiment of
covenants relating to certain of the subsidiary’s consolidated balance
sheet ratios and maintenance of capital at certain required levels. If
the subsidiary were to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. As at 31 March 2009, none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2008:

SN,

Annual Report 08-09 &£ 97



B 7% ¥R 3% B 5 E
Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22 FEMRERE 22 Obligations under Finance Leases
R-ZEBEENF=A=1+—8 KXEEH At 31 March 2009, the Group had obligations under finance leases
BMEMEAENERGMOT repayable as follows:

2009 2008

REEE REEE REMAE REMAE
NRERE CRELR (XERE RBRER

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
T T T T
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
1F R Within 1 year 73 74 140 147
16 B2FR After 1 year but within 2 years - - 70 70
73 74 210 219

B BEFIBSZH  Less: Total future
BE interest expenses M )

HEREMNRE Present value of lease

obligations 73 210
=53 .
23 BN ETHE 23 Government Lease Premiums Payable
&
The Group
2009 2008
e Tt
$°000 $'000
JE T BUR H(E Government lease premiums payable 2,367 2,406
W BIEREMRR - Efb Less: Amount due within one year included
ERRNETERN in accounts payable, other payables
1 A FER R B and accruals (40) (39)
2,327 2,367
ERBAEN B R AREEHBEIN Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
EEMNESEHEHE - fixed rate of 5% per annum on the outstanding balance.
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24 BEXRK#E 24 Capital and Reserves

@ *EHE (@) The Group
BEENE AR D
BA  ROEE EfREE  NERE EERE E4AEE  REERN AE KRREZ HzEH
Hotel
properties
Share Share revaluation  Exchange  Fair value Capital  Retained Minority
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests  Total equity

T T T T T T T T T T
§'000 §'000 $000 $000 §'000 §'000 $000 §'000 §'000 §'000

R2007E4A1E A1 April 2007 118,683 3,147 738,371 1,762 552 67,694 1,686,180 2,616,389 2,467,594 5,083,983
HEBR F—4% Dividends approved in

HRE respect of the previous

(Bt E100)) year (note 10(0) - - - - - — {4240 (14242) — 4242
B AR Premium in respect of

BRBTELR  preference shares issued

AR A E A Y to preference shareholders

it of a subsidiary - - - - - 39 _ 39 39 78
BWEEINHBERR  Exchange differences on

BIBEREL  translation of financial

MERZEE statements of overseas
subsidiaries - - — 5,042 - 5127 - 10,169 10,164 20,333
BMEMEEMES  Changes in deferred tax
HEEHIEZE  resulting from decrease
in tax rate - - 8,808 - - - - 8,808 8,805 17,613
AR Available-for-sales equity
B securities:
- DA EEE — changes in fair value - - - - 4,303 - - 4,308 - 4,303
~REBEA — transfer to profit or
B loss on disposal - - - - (2,191) — — 2,191) _ (2,1971)
AEERA Profit for the year - - - - - - 221,226 221,226 199,684 420910
KEEDERMKSE  Dividends declared in
GEIEY respect of the current
year (note 10(a) - - . - - - (0495  (9495) - (9,495)
20083 A31H At 31 March 2008 118,683 3,147 747179 6,804 2,604 72,860 1,883,669 2,835006 2,686,286 5,521,292
R2008E4F1H  At1Apri2008 118,683 3,147 747179 6,804 2,664 72,860 1,883,669 2,835,006 2,686,286 5,521,292
WEESNHEBRT  Exchange differences on
BKBAFEL  translation of financial
MERER statements of overseas
subsidiaries - - - (9,387) - (9,568) — (18955  (18949) (37,904
AR ERR Available-for-sales equity
EH securities:
-RAEEE — changes in fair value - - - - (2,252) - - (2,252) - (2,252)
“REREA — transfer to profit or
B loss on disposal - - - - 22 - - 22 - 2
AEEESE Loss for the year - - - - - - (86392  (863%) (67426 (173819)
R2000E3A31H At 31 March 2009 118,683 3,147 747179 (2,583) 434 63,292 1,797,277 2,727,429 2,579,911 5,307,340
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 BEXRKFEE @) 24 Capital and Reserves continued)
(b) &2 F (b) The Company
(&S 5% E 1R 88 3% Fl WEE
Share Share Retained
capital premium earnings Total
Fx Fx Fx Frx
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
R2007F 4 A1H At 1 April 2007 118,683 3,147 237,834 359,664
HEBR L —4  Dividends approved in
EHkE respect of the previous year
(P 5E10(0)) (note 10(b)) - - (14,242) (14,242)
NEE A Profit for the year — _ 19,359 19,359
AEFEEEEIK Dividends declared in
A% 2 (Bf5E10@))  respect of the current year
(note 10(a)) - - (9,495) (9,495)
200843 HA31H At31 March 2008 118,683 3,147 233,456 355,286
F2008F4 A1 H At 1 April 2008 118,683 3,147 233,456 355,286
REZ 5 A Profit for the year - - 1,159 1,159
200943 HA31H At 31 March 2009 118,683 3,147 234,615 356,445
© KA (c) Share capital
2009 2008
Fr T
$°000 $'000
ERE Authorised:
600,000,000 A% 600,000,000 shares
BREEC25T of $0.25 each 150,000 150,000
ERTRAR: Issued and fully paid:
474,731,824 % 474,731,824 shares
SFRRMEE025TT of $0.25 each 118,683 118,683
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24 BEARRER @

(©)

N ED)

BB ABREIRTEE IR K
g LRAIEARAAGLEERE K
Pein 18 — & o B R A R B AR &
BE MBERNHEERSEA -

RBHMEBENAR

B aEBEREMBEXIEB(A A
s

1) 48BIRFTE 8 -
BEDEEGHERIEAEFER
ERNEEEGHAMA - BEREH
B mzALE R EEERBERE
5 RBEXBEBBYER R
HENEGRBREREEMEER
FEEARBEN - WREEBEETA
DIRH)

AEBE D RIIVERE - WRME
1A 8 e E R E B IME 2 BT IS 8]
RFIEAMEAEZBEAERM
BRIE o

RABEREEBRENEERABRE

HAFMBSAEITHLEREZESN
AREERFEEFE - WK
1A)PTEHA ST IRER -

EARBRIE—HNBAREITE
TR B ST T 2 e AR M A
5 Bh 7% Y 8 X /) AN A 0k B f
FFIBINE B -

A 2 R A 1

RZZETZAF=A=+—H A#
DETFTAANREERRNHER
%8 /145,077,000 L (ZE T )\ F ¢
139,827,0007T ) °

24 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(©

Share capital (Continued)

The holders of shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

The application of the share premium account is governed by

section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The hotel properties revaluation reserve represents revaluation
surpluses of hotel recognised in prior years. The hotel has now
been demolished and the site is presently under redevelopment
into ISQUARE. Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties,
any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the hotel
properties revaluation reserve to retained earnings. The reserve

is non-distributable.

The exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations in note 1(r).

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale equity securities held at the
balance sheet date and is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies in note 1(d).

The capital reserve represents the net increase in the Group’s
share of the undistributable reserve in a subsidiary pursuant to
the issuance of various classes of preference shares by a

subsidiary to preference shareholders.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2009, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was

$145,077,000 (2008: $139,827,000).
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24 BEARFf#fE @

25

®)

MEEREER

EAXREHE

rEBE @§$miﬁﬁmmﬁ
BAKREREQENEN NS
%iL&ﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬂmﬁ@@*
FRBOREEBARAGERAR
BEmENSTN  BESERRR
WM W AEAMEREA LR
M e

AEBTHBRIMERLE AL
® o BREAREAE S M E B KT
AFMB SRR L IREE - HiERE
B ROR RS R BB B RS BUS
& TEAESEBSIEEMmMAEE
R - BE_ZTNFR-ZZZN
FZA=+—"BLEFEE A&H
BB R RS s N o

RNEBIEE BAR R & FEE
% BRFHEABEBEXEXRES
EERHE AL o Bl

ms  AEEATERBELERAR
RITEREERUAGAEERAER
%ﬁm%ﬁ%%om:%%ni
=A=+—H AEEMELREELL
%%mﬂu:%%ﬂirm%%
i BRITFERRE AR
—@ﬁ%ﬁ%%%&ﬂ:%%ﬂ
FHBBRITEREENRITFER
X 35 % £347,493,0007T ) °

DN REE

=
MEHBK?

AEEESHELFEXBBRETHREE

fm@yﬁi CFEFMEERE o ANER IR
CHRAETEERENEENERE

R o

102 Tian Teck Land Limited X&EthESR AT

24 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(f)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by redeveloping and
leasing properties, and pricing services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a

reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2009
and 2008.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. As at 31 March
2009, the Group’s gearing ratio was 10.7% (2008: 2.4%) with
total bank loan exceeding bank deposits and cash of
$115,353,000 (2008: bank deposits and cash exceeding total
bank loan of $347,493,000).

25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also

exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments.



%5 BEEBREERAAEBE
(%8&)

BRAARAEEMAENRAR  NRAEH
FIARZ & B 32 A B 1O B 75 o B B 02 IR R
MEEMORF AT -

@ FERR

AEENEERKREERS EWEE
R EBEREEEHREEREK ILHE
&ﬁ %Fﬁ7¥(Xm1+gH|§N\

HEWBR KT E - HRATAEKE
HBR-—TLEFENER A%
EgELEREETE - BHEE
hREEFRBAHEEINHEENG
BRBRIMEEED YEEER
FPREERUNERFEEMENL
%%%o%@%ﬁ@mA%%mx
—RERZEEE B EF0REE
%'ﬁ%%mgﬁﬁmkmﬁﬁﬁ
BZEZARH1ARAEE - RAlg
R R KA HIO0 K M = B R BR B 4%
2eEEERF UMEBXEKEMNEE
EBMAEMNTE ERMEREE
BHERARZTEEA  ARSER
BB THERIUEETE o K
EEUBMEFTE (2HME19)1E
AEKERWIERS -
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25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposures to this credit risks is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due after 60 days in
respect of golf and recreational club operation and within 14
days in respect of property leasing from the date of billing.
Accounts for members of the golf and recreational club with
balances that are 90 days past due are suspended and such
action will be taken against defaulting members as may be
appropriate. For debtors of property leasing, legal action will be
taken against past due debtors whenever the situation is
appropriate. The Group obtains deposits from customers (see

note 19) as collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any
collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to

credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 15.
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25

(%)

(b)

BHERBEERAAMEE 25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)
REE 2 E R (b) Liquidity risk
AEENBRESTHERERME The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
AHRBESE KR UNBREST liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
BERELE  HRAEFAVNIRSH covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
o RIRERITABIERERHNE cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities
EfE UnREBN8RPNRE to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
TRFAWAEBRAKAAF ZIEMTE The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
CHEBEREEAGBREFANN at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s
BEXNEERIE ZERIBEERELD non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
AFTBBERE(BIEUELF E contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
REREERBRAEEANE R payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
(BT E)FENMNEMNT) & based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
AEBNARR ARSI BAHM earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to
H| %R - pay:
KE The Group
2009
EE GHARFE 15/
8% ReheE NEE BB1E BiE2F
REE aE BAK  BOR2E BAHRSE BB5E
Balance Total More than More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
FERBRER - Accounts payable,
HMERZRE  other payables and
Bt BR accruals 207,467 207,467 164,427 43,016 - 2
BliTe Deposits received 7,966 7,966 4,655 1,129 2717 1,905
BEMERRE  Finance lease liabilties 73 74 74 - _ _
RITER — Bank loan —
BEM secured 568,000 579,635 4,714 4,714 570,207 -
ENHBFHE  Government lease
premiums payable 2,327 4,449 159 159 477 3,654
HthBIEBE  Other financial iabilities 2 2 - - 1 1
785,835 799,593 174,029 49,018 570,962 5,584
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BHEEBEEERNAEBE 25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(#&) (Continued)
(b) 5)ilf: EJ ﬁ ® 2 @ (&) (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AEE (&) The Group (Continued)

FERERA Accounts payable,

HiER R other payables and

fEFER accruals 68,633 68,633 65,905 261 2,458 9
BT & Deposits received 7,495 7,495 5,057 1,283 - 1,155
BMAMERRE  Financeleaseliabilties 210 219 147 7 - -
RITER - Bank loan —

BHEA secured 130,000 143,024 4,108 4,108 134,808 -
JERBTHE  Government lease

premiums payable 2,367 4,608 169 159 477 3813

EEBER  Otherfinancial liabilties 2 2 - - - 0

208,707 223,981 75,376 5,883 137,743 4,979

Annual Report 08-09 &% 105



B 7 3R 3R MY &
Notes to the Financial Statements
(LLB# %5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

o5 BIBEMEERANALMEMAE 25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(%) (Continued)
b) RBEEREM (&) (b) Liquidity risk (Gontinued)
iN/NET The Company
2009
BRRITH 1F R
BEEAEBR RERE o EE BiB1F
BRE B HmaE B BLR25
Balance Total More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but
carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years
Fr Fr Fr T
$°000 $'000 $°000 $000
R - Efth Accounts payable, other
JER R ESTE R payables and accruals 1,189 1,189 1,189 -
BET & Deposits received 2,146 2,146 1,508 638
3,335 3,335 2,697 638

ERERTR - Efty Accounts payable, other

JER KR ESTER  payables and accruals 1,350 1,350 1,350 —
BWET & Deposits received 2,108 2,108 825 1,283
3,458 3,458 2,175 1,283
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REREERAABE

(&)

(c) FZEER
AEBMFEABEERERBE

E-IRRBEEASEAARES
MENERER AEEEEEESR
B M AR 40T () Pt

0 MEHR
TERFIREERABEREE
BAKENEER /R -

25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(c)

EEMBE: Fixed rate borrowings:
MEEERE Finance lease liabilities
FEAS BT Hb (B Government lease
premiums payable

FEMEE: Variable rate borrowings:
RITE K Bank loan

— BER — secured
BEERE Total borrowings

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk primarily arises from long-term

borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the

Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate

profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group’s borrowings at the balance sheet date:

2009
BERF=
Effective
interest rate

%

2.35

5.00

0.83

RE
The Group
2008
R A =
Effective
Fx interest rate T
$°000 % $°000
73 2.35 210
2,327 5.00 2,367
2,400 2,577
568,000 3.16 130,000
570,400 132,577
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5 BEEKREERAAMEME 25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(#&) (Continued)

© FH=mEM (5 (c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i

BRE DT
RZZETZNF=ZR=+—
H HEtgfEEE LA
TR2B(ZTETN\F :50) &
BoMmMEmBAEMATZRAEE
MRETE . AEEREEE
M RARE &M KA R
# n1491,420,0007C ( Z T Z )\
£ : 650,0007T) °

B E 5 AT 5 R R &
&) (37 Eﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi
HE4E) HAEBRKRBZER
(AR BB F) ) &9 B s &1L o
BRAEBMAAEREEERE
REERAFBAZEETET
EmMEEMNBEERENER
s - 2% B R % T
(MRBEM) MFERIEZ
FlEEE|EF L HNFE
fERBELGET - BB
REZSTNFHRAMHEE
AT o
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(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2009, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 25 (2008: 50) basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately $1,420,000 (2008:
$650,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2008.



%5 BEEBREERAAEBE

(&)

(d

HME R B

SMERBAECDRERANEERAE
WINAEEOIEEE B ER
E4 AR AKENIINERRER
KEEXTEREFR Bt NEHE
WEEHASNEFENEREER
BfE-

0 INERBRALE
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25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises when recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s
functional currency. The Group does not hedge its financial
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies in the
view that the Group’s foreign currency risk exposure primarily
refers to the fixed deposits denominated in United States

Dollars (“USD”).

(i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the

balance sheet date to currency risk arising from

BERREEMEE£HINE recognised assets denominated in USD:
[EBe
&
The Group
2009 2008
Ep i ExTT
USD’000 USD’000
JEWERTR ~ 5T & Accounts receivable, deposits
SEEREN and prepayments 27 77
BeMIReEED Cash and cash equivalents 55,513 59,150
8 [ g AR P SF 28 Overall net exposure 55,540 59,227

i) BREREDN
RRBBEETTAEN K&
B Je AN D A PR S B E T AR
BRI RBRERYTE
Ke B RZBTHEM
ZEEN\FIEETHRE
DHT °

(i) Sensitivity analysis
In the light of the Hong Kong dollar peg, the foreign
currency risk associated with the USD exposure is not
expected to be material to the Group and the Company.
Therefore, no sensitivity analysis is performed in 2009

and 2008.
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25 BBEBEERAAEBHE

(&)

€)

B ERER

AEBEFEAEIBRAFLERE
@ (RWEId) FEES R
BEEEE

AEENLTREAREETEHE
RGMARRAF ETHRA « RE
BESEAHEEREAETHOLE
TREBZENZRENTHER
B XEHETAMRIAEL A
EREERR -

BER-_ZTAF=A=1+—8
FIYERBURE DT - AEE/H LT
REMEEEN,HMP3B5%(ZETN
F:025%) (A E e #E &%
BAE) HBethIELRRE
E IR N e N o R A e

I - REBM RSB I
L m 479,000 T (ZBE N\ F -
905,0007T ) © I RIR—ZETN

EIED
FRRAMEEET
QI nEE
REBMFE S BT A AEER

BN AABETZEAEEAEZEDN
EUEETIER o
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25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 1(d)).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Listed investments held in the
available-for-sale portfolio have been chosen based on their
long term growth potential and are monitored regularly for

performance against expectation.

Based on the sensitivity analysis performed at 31 March 2009,
it is estimated that an increase/decrease of 35% (2008: 25%) in
the market value of the Group’s listed investments, with all other
variables held constant, would not affect the Group’s profit
unless there are impairments. The Group’s total equity would
increase/decrease by $479,000 (2008: $905,000). The analysis

is performed on the same basis for 2008.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2009 and 2008.
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26 Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$20,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $20,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately. The staff costs
in respect of staff employed by DTZ for building and property
management of iISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s income

statement.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Malaysia and Singapore
are members of the Employee Provident Fund and the Central
Provident Fund (“the funds”) operated by the respective local
government. The relevant subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
funds at rates ranging from 7.5% to 14.5% based on the salaries of
the employees. The only obligation of the Group to the above funds is

the required contributions at the applicable rate.

During the year, forfeited contributions of $15,000 (2008: $51,000)
were utilised to reduce the contributions payable for the year. No
unutilised forfeited contributions had yet to be applied by the Group at
31 March 2009 and 2008.
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27 RIE 27 Commitments
@ R-ZZEZAF=ZA=+—HBFXKENR (@)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2009 not
Xk 1E BF 7 3k 7R B4 9 8 2N & provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
EMT

2009
FTr
$'000
BETH Contracted for 512,357 1,071,999
R-_ZEZHAE=A=+—H R At 31 March 2009, the estimated cost of construction in
188 7 B E63 58 (L BE A f#h ER 7425 respect of the development of ISQUARE on the site located at
EIHNEBRESEETEMENE No. 63 Nathan Road, Kowloon (Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)
SR ANB AL 13E T - is around $1.3 billion.
by M-ZEZHAF=A=+—8 BE (o) At 31 March 2009, the total future minimum lease payments
RO MRB R MERKLHERLBILE under non-cancellable operating leases of properties are
NosERERKBEABMT : payable as follows:

1R Within 1 year 1,250 —
1F % B5FR After 1 year but within 5 years 361 -
1,611 —
NEFERURKLHERRA—WED The Group is the lessee in respect of a property held under
AFAA - EHEAEWE - ZHE operating lease. The lease runs for a period of two years. The
TEE%EHRS - lease does not include contingent rentals.
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Contingent Liabilities

In November 2007, an overseas subsidiary filed a claim in court
against a subscriber of the golf club membership in Malaysia for the
payment of approximately $1.3 million being the remaining outstanding
balance for certain preference shares of the subsidiary. However, the
subscriber disputed the claim and filed a counterclaim of
approximately $4.7 million on 28 January 2008 on the alleged grounds

that the subscriber had suffered loss of reputation and other losses.

In August 2008, the overseas subsidiary and the subscriber agreed to
settle by withdrawing their respective claims against each other and a
notice of discontinuance for this purpose was filed in court. The case
was closed upon the judge striking out the above claims in December
2008. Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that no provision

for the counterclaim is necessary.

Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling
Party

At 31 March 2009, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong. This entity

does not produce financial statements available for public use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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30 Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but
not yet effective for the Year Ended
31 March 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2009 and

which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant

impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or amended

presentation and disclosures in the financial statements:

EUTH#SZ2%
MM E AR EXR
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BRMBIMELER) FE85R Fsd—pa=il 200951 A1H
HKFRS 8 Operating segments 1 January 2009
(EEEHERDFE15E (EET) ipvsres:0 el 2009F1A1H
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial statements 1 January 2009
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Five Year Financial Summary

(LB 5)R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E 5 Results
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
T Tt Tz Tz Fr
$'000 $’'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
B Turnover 448,185 352,856 26,276 26,274 25,766
SRR (E8) Profit/(loss) from operations
(3%) (Note) 349,443 371,576 655,640 471,894 (208,984)
BA A Finance costs (157) (166) (215) (141) (138)
BRBEATER 7 (EHE)  Profit/(loss) before taxation 349,286 371,410 655,425 471,753 (209,122)
T8 %% Income tax (56,770) (65,518) (111,552) (50,843) 35,304
REEZRM,(FBIE) Profit/(loss) for the year 292,516 305,892 543,873 420,910 (173,818)
THIAL R : Attributable to:
NEIRERIRE Equity shareholder of
the Company 156,089 162,383 278,694 221,226 (86,392)
DERRERER Minority interests 136,427 143,509 265,179 199,684 (87,426)
292,516 305,892 543,873 420,910 (173,818)
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Five Year Financial Summary

(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EERAEE Assets and Liabilities
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
T T Tt Tt T
$000 $000 $:000 $000 $°000
EEE Fixed assets 4329101 4,627,853 5,364,683 5993928 | 6,342,832
HEHERE Other investments in
At ERESES securities/available-for-sale
(31) equity securities (Note) 29,809 26,091 2,037 3,621 1,369
RIEHIBE = Deferred tax assets 4,695 1,432 1,501 1,565 1,286
MEEEFE Net current assets 407,002 500,621 435,653 404,490 | 245,806

4,770,607 5155997 5803874 6,403,604 | 6,591,293

BITER — A Bankloan — secured - - —  (130,000)| (568,000)
FEN R E Government lease

premiums payable 2,478) (2,443) (2,406) (2,367) (2,327)
B E R IE Obligations under finance leases ©41) (575) (188) (70) -
EER B G Deferred tax liabilities (548,233)  (606,396)  (717,295)  (749,873)| (713,624)
B BaE Other financial liabilities © ) @) @) @
BEFE NET ASSETS 4219054 4546582 5083983 5521,292 | 5,307,340
A% A< Share capital 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683
s (G Reserves (Note) 2065304 2234590 2,497,706 2,716,323 | 2,608,746

2183987 2,353,273 2,616,389 2,835,006 | 2,727,429

DB RS Minority interests 2035067 2,193,309 2467594 2,686,286 | 2,579,911
EREH TOTAL EQUITY 4,219,054 4546582 5083983 5,521,292 | 5,307,340
H: ARA(EBOHER)SEEET AL BEY Note: In order to comply with Amendment to HKAS 39, The fair value option, the

ST AEE G - TEAEMA — A Group changed It.S accounting policy for |hve3tments |‘n‘ equity se.c‘untles with
. effect from 1 April 2006. In accordance with the transitional provisions of the

&= 35 FE 5% U LA OR Hh @ = B = ) ) ) )

BT RREEEFRANGIBE - RIFEA standard, the changes in accounting policy were adopted retrospectively but the

ERAREEERY  BRESFRENETHEHE opening balance of the fair value reserve as at 1 April 2005 was not restated.

WERA BEYEERN _ZETAFEA—BHA

REBEREHDE -
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